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Fundamental Accounting Assumption in preparation 

Going concern

It is assumed that business 
would continue for 
foreseeable period. 

Specific accounting principles & Methods of applying such principles 

adopted in preparation and 

Selection of accounting policies is the responsibility of the management.

In selection of accounting policies, management should consider the following:

Primary consideration 

- It means management 

should be careful while 

selecting accounting 

policies.

- Management should 

apply knowledge i.e. 

nature of business, legal 

requirements, accounting 

standards, etc. in the 

selection of policies. 

Financial statements should 

give True & Fair view after 

applying selected policies  

1. 

2. 

Chart AS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”TeachMe Academy (88887 88889) AS 1 – Disclosure of Accounting Polic

Fundamental Accounting Assumption in preparation 
of financial statements 

Consistency

it is always assumed 
that same accounting 

policies would be 
followed every year.

Accrual Assumption

It is assumed that entity 
record all income & exp. on 
period basis. They are not 

recorded on payment basis

Accounting Policies Means 

Specific accounting principles & Methods of applying such principles 

adopted in preparation and presentation of financial statements.

Selection of accounting policies is the responsibility of the management.

In selection of accounting policies, management should consider the following:

 Other Major consideration

Prudence Substance over 

It means management 

should be careful while 

selecting accounting 

policies. 

Management should 

apply knowledge i.e. 

nature of business, legal 

requirements, accounting 

standards, etc. in the 

selection of policies.  

- It is Reality over 

Legality. 

- Management 

should select the 

accounting policies 

which help to 

present a accurate 

picture of financial 

statements rather 

than legality 

AS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”Disclosure of Accounting Policies

1 

 

 

Fundamental Accounting Assumption in preparation 

Accrual Assumption

It is assumed that entity 
record all income & exp. on 
period basis. They are not 

recorded on payment basis

Specific accounting principles & Methods of applying such principles 

presentation of financial statements. 

Selection of accounting policies is the responsibility of the management. 

In selection of accounting policies, management should consider the following: 

consideration 

Materiality 

accounting policies 

present a accurate 

picture of financial 

- Financial 

Statement should 

disclose all 

material Items i.e. 

those items 

which affect 

decision making 

of users 

AS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies” 
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Inventory is an asset held for sale in the ordinary course of business (Finished goods), which 

is used in the process of production (Raw Material) or consumed in the process of 

production (Consumables and Loose tools) 

Valuation of Inventory 

Inventory is valued at COST (or) NRV whichever is LOWER 

1. 

Particulars  ₹  

Purchase price i.e. Basic price of 

material 

Add  

NON refundable taxes & duties  

Carrying Cost i.e. inward freight cost  

Inward Insurance cost  

All other costs incurred directly 

related to acquisition and bringing it 

to warehouse.  

 

-- 

 

-- 

-- 

-- 

 

-- 

Less  

Trade discounts Quantity discounts  

Duty drawbacks & other similar 

items  

 

-- 

-- 

 

-- 

Cost of Purchase   -- 

 

Cost of Purchase Cost of Conversion  Other Cost  

All other costs incurred to bring the inventory to the present 

location and condition.  E.g. R & D cost, Packaging cost, 

Administration OHs in relation to production activities 

This includes the costs incurred to convert the raw 

materials into finished goods. (I.e. Factory Overheads) 

Absorption of Factory Overheads 

Fixed OHs Variable OHs 

Actual Capacity > 

Normal Capacity 

Actual Capacity 

< Normal 

Absorb based on 

Actual Capacity 

Absorb based on 

Normal Capacity 

Absorb based 

on actual 

capacity 

utilisation 

Example 

Let us understand “What Cost of Inventory Includes” 

Chart AS – 2 Valuation of Inventories (Chart) 

Cost of inventory should be ascertained in following manner 
1. If stock in hand is unique not similar to each other, use Specific Identification Method. 

2. If stock in hand is similar to each other, then use following two methods of stock valuation FIFO 

Method, Weighted Average Method 

Following Cost should be Excluded from Cost – 1) Abnormal Loss 2) Storage Cost (Unless those cost 

are necessary for production process) 3) Administrative selling & distribution cost                                             

4) Borrowing cost (Interest) 
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2. 
Let us see “How to Calculate Net Realisable Value 

Expected SP - Selling cost  Expected SP of FG - Expected 

cost to complete - Selling Cost 

Strictly, No need to 

determine NRV 

Net Realisable Value of  

Finished Goods 
Work in Progress Raw Material 

3. Valuation of Raw Material 

Its valuation is fully based on the valuation of Finished Goods 

If finished goods is sold or expected to be 

sold at cost or above cost 

If finished goods is sold or expected to 

be sold below the cost 

Raw material should be valued at 

Cost 

Raw material should be valued at 

Replacement Cost 

Examples 

Or 

               Disclosure Requirements –  

The financial statement should disclosed 
4. 

1. The accounting policies adopted in measuring inventories, including the cost 

formula used. The accounting policies adopted in measuring inventories, 

including the cost formula used  

2. The total carrying amount of inventories and its classification appropriate to the 

enterprise.  
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Initial Recognisation & Measurement Subsequent Recognisation & Measurement 

Does subsequent 

expenditure (including 

spare parts) increase the 

future economic benefits?                          

In other words it is PPE if 

it satisfies the recognition 

criteria 

Payment of Cash/Credit Self construction Exchange with 

another assets & by 

issue of securities 

Asset is recognised at 

Purchase Price + Expenses 

incurred on asset to make 

asset ready to use 

Asset is recognised 

at Cost of 

Construction + 

Expenses 

Borrowing cost 

incurred before 

asset is ready to 

use.                           

(Avoid internal 

profits on stores 

used and abnormal 

loss of material and 

labour) 

 

Purchase price                xx 

 +Freight                            xx       

+Non refundable taxes  xx 

+PV of restoration          xx 

+All direct exp Inc till  

ready to use                     xx    

+ 16- Borrowing cost       xx 

-Discount                           xx 

-Govt. Grants                    xx 

                                             xx  

 

1.  Asset received is 

recognised at Fair value 

of either                                                      

(a) Asset given up                                            

(b) Asset acquired.  

2.  If it is reliable 

measurement of fair 

value of asset given up 

or Asset received is not 

possible then new asset 

received is to be 

recorded at Carrying 

amount of Asset given 

up. 

Asset is acquired by 

It is recognised as PPE if it is expected to generate Future economic benefit to Entity  

Recognition of Plant, Property and Equipments 

How entity should do "Recognition of PPE" i.e.   (Recording of PPE in the books of account) 2.  

Let us see “What is PPE” 

It is Tangible Assets 

1.  

Expected to be used during more than a 

period of 12 months 

Held for use in 

Producing Goods  Providing Services  Rental to others  For Administration 

Purpose 

Chart - AS 10 – PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PPE) 

Yes No 

Charge to 

P&L 

Statement 

Capitalise 

along with 

PPE 

 & 
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After disposal of a PPE, it should be completely eliminated from the financial statements i.e. gross 

value and accumulated depreciation related to the asset: 

Accounting disposal   

COST Model 

Profit/loss on disposal should be  
transferred to P & L

Revaluation Model & Revaluation surplus exist 

Profit/Loss on disposal should be transferred to P&L; 

After disposal, if any Revaluation surplus exists -
transfer to General reserve (Revenue reserves)

1. PPE is retired from active use and it is held for disposal - such PPE should be 

stated in balance sheet Carrying amount (Net book value); or  Net realisable 

value (NRV) Whichever is LOWER  

 

 
 

2. Disclose such items separately in the financial statements. Any expected loss 

should be recognised immediately in the profit and loss statement. 

Replaced By 

Retirement of PPE 4.  

1. Major assets replacement & overhauling should be capitalised and depreciated over its 

useful life, if it satisfies PPE recognition criteria. 

2. If deferred credit terms are involved, it should be recognised at present value and it would 

be unwinded over the period. PPE should be recognised at cash price (Present Value) on the 

date of Recognisation. Interest = Total Payment – Cash Price should be debited to P& L 

unless asset is qualifying asset as per AS -16 

3. Useful life, Residual value & depreciation method should be reviewed every year end.  

4. Any change in price. Life, Realisable Value & method of depreciation - Account 

prospectively. 

5. Select Cost or revaluation model for the entire class of items. Select and apply consistently.  

6. If any major components is replaced then component to be recognised separately by 

removing old component from book and depreciation on new component to be charged on 

component basis. 

 

3.  

5.  

Important Points 
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This AS discusses how to convert the foreign currency transaction into reporting currency i.e. 

♥ Which exchange rate should be used to convert it into Rupees

♥ How to account for the changes in foreign currency (Forex) rates in financial statements.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Monetary items

Monetary items are money held assets 
and liabilities to be received or paid in 

determinable amounts of money. 

Therefore following items are monetary items: 

• 1. Money held (i.e. cash and cash equivalents held 
by the entity).

• 2. Assets which are receivable in terms of money.

• 3. Liabilities which are payable in terms of money. 

Chart AS - 11 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

What is Monetary & Non 1. 

2. Let us understand 

Transactions in foreign currency directly 

by the entity i.e. imports, exports, 

foreign currency loans, etc.

3. 

Currency 

Recording of Foreign currency 

transactions entered by the 

entity 

TeachMe Academy (88887 88889) AS - 11 - The Effects Of Changes In Foreign………

This AS discusses how to convert the foreign currency transaction into reporting currency i.e. 

should be used to convert it into Rupees and  

How to account for the changes in foreign currency (Forex) rates in financial statements.

Monetary items are money held assets 
and liabilities to be received or paid in 

determinable amounts of money. 

Therefore following items are monetary items: 

1. Money held (i.e. cash and cash equivalents held 

2. Assets which are receivable in terms of money.

3. Liabilities which are payable in terms of money. 

Non monetary items

Non monetary items are those items 
in which benefit is receivable in 

Kinds, Goods or services. 

Example :Prepaid expenses, 
Advances given to suppliers.

In above examples, we will receive 
either service or goods in return.

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

What is Monetary & Non – Monetary Item

Let us understand An entity can have foreign currency transactions in two ways

Transactions in foreign currency directly 

by the entity i.e. imports, exports, 

foreign currency loans, etc. 

Foreign currency transactions by its 

foreign branch or subsidiary, etc. 

Reporting Currency - currency in which financial 

statements are presented. 

 

Foreign currency - currency is other than the 

reporting currency.  

This Standard guides in  

Recording of Foreign currency Translation of financial 

statements of foreign 

operations 

The Effects Of Changes In Foreign……… 

6 

This AS discusses how to convert the foreign currency transaction into reporting currency i.e.  

How to account for the changes in foreign currency (Forex) rates in financial statements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Non monetary items

Non monetary items are those items 
in which benefit is receivable in 

Kinds, Goods or services. 

Example :Prepaid expenses, 
Advances given to suppliers.

In above examples, we will receive 
either service or goods in return.

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 

Monetary Item 

An entity can have foreign currency transactions in two ways 

Foreign currency transactions by its 

foreign branch or subsidiary, etc. 

(Indirectly)  

currency in which financial 

is other than the 

Accounting for forward 

exchange contracts 
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Record using the rate on 

Date of Transaction 

/Average rate 

(if no significant 

fluctuation) 

 

Carried At 

Initial Recognition  Classification of Assets & Liabilities as on Balance Sheet Date 

Monetary item Non-Monetary item 

Closing Rate 

Historical cost Fair value 

Rate on date of valuation Rate on Date of Transaction 

Recording of Foreign currency transactions entered by the entity 
4.  

5.  

Difference - Transfer to P & L 

Monetary & 

Non - Monetary  

Contingent 

liabilities 

P & L 

items 

Based on classification of foreign operation 

Integral Foreign Operation  Non-Integral Foreign Operation 

 

Monetary  P & L items & 

others 

Non - Monetary  

Historical 

Cost 

Rate on Date of 

Transaction 

Fair Value 

Rate on date 

of valuation 

Closing Rate  

Closing Rate  
Rate on Date 

of Transaction 

Closing 

Rate 

Difference - transfer to FCTR a/c every year 

FCTR a/c - will be transferred to P & L only on 

disposal of Foreign Operation.   

FCTR – Foreign Currency Transaction Reserve  

Rate on Date of 

Transaction 
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Forward Contract entered for its own 

purpose 

Forward Contract entered for Trading/ 

Speculation 

1. Premium or discount arising at the 

inception of the contract should be 

amortised as an expense or income 

over the life of the contract. 

2. Exchange difference on such contract 

should be recognised in P&L.  

3. Any profit or loss arising on 

cancellation or renewal of such 

forward contract should be 

recognised as income or expense for 

the period.  

6. 
Types of Forward Contract 

1. Premium or Discount on such contracts 

need not be recognised.  

2. As the forward contract is held for 

trading or speculation purpose it should 

be valued at the balance sheet rate .  

3. Gain or loss as on the Balance sheet date 

should be recognised in P&L for the 

period.  

4. Gain or loss = Forward rate available on 

the reporting date for the remaining 

maturity of the contract LESS Forward 

rate fixed at the inception. 
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. 

Government Grants are Govt. assistance in cash/kind for compliance of future/past conditions 

Two conditions must be satisfied for recognition of Government Grant 

                                  1. There is reasonable assurance that the entity will comply with the conditions 

                                  2. Ultimate collection is reasonably certain. 

 

Now Let us see “What will be the Accounting treatment for Grant Received” 

Govt. Assistance /Grant in form of Cash Govt. Assistance /Grant in form of kind 

Grant Received - 

related to Specific 

Asset 

Grant Received - 

related to 

Revenue Expenses  

Received at Free of 

cost 

Record at Nominal 

Value 

Received at 

Concessional Price. 

Record it at 

acquisition Rate 

Alternative ONE 

 

Alternative Two  

 

1. Amount 

received is 

deducted 

from the 

gross value of 

the asset;  

 

2. The reduced 

amount of 

fixed asset is 

depreciated 

over its 

useful life 

 

1. Amount received 

is treated as 

deferred income 

 

2. Deferred income 

is recognised in 

P&L a/c on a 

systematic and 

rational basis over 

the useful life of the 

asset; 

3. Apply 

depreciation method 

to recognise 

deferred income in 

P&L a/c; 

 

Depreciable Assets Non - Depreciable Assets 
Option 1 – Deduct from related Expenses  

Option 2 – Credit to P & L A/c as other 

income in a systematic basis (Matching 

Concept) 

No conditions to be fulfilled  Conditions to be fulfilled 

Credit to capital reserve Credit to P & L in a 

systematic Manner 

Chart AS 12 - Accounting for Government Grants 
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Disclosure under Accounting Standard - 12 

• Accounting Policy followed by Entity. 

• Nature & Extent of Government Grants recognized in Financial Statement.  

 

Refund of Government Grant 

Related to Revenue Relating to promoters 

Related to Fixed Asset 

Related to fixed Asset 

• Apply first against 

unamortized deferred GG.  

• Balance (if any) - Debit P & L.  

Debit Capital Reserve 

 

• Debit to FA &  

• Depreciate the Revised 

Book Value prospectively 

over the remaining useful 

life.  

• Debit from Capital Reserve/ 

Deferred GG. (if any)  

Government grants are generally refundable when the entity does not fulfil certain 

conditions. Refund of grant is treated as an extraordinary item as per AS 5 
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Investment is a   

Asset  (Not held as Stock in Trade) 

Held for earning 
Income 

By the way of 

Dividend Rental Interest

Held for Capital 
Appreciation 

Held for Other 
Benefits 

Sale of Investments 

Profit or Loss on sale of investments should be recognised in the P&L alc. 

Profit / (Loss) = Sale proceeds (Net of selling expenses) - Carrying amount (book value). 

 

3. 

Initial Recognition 

Recognise at Cost i.e.  

Purchase Price                        XX  

+ Incidental expenses           XX  

- Pre acquisition income     XX 

                                                      XX 

Subsequent measurement on BS date  

Based on classification 

Current Investment  

Two conditions to be satisfied  

1. It is readily realisable                                           

2. Intention to hold for not more than 

one year from date of investment   

 

Measures at Cost OR Fair value whichever is 

lower (on Individual Investment Basis) 

Any reduction to fair value and any reversals of such 

reductions are transferred to P&L A/c 

Long term Investment 

Which is not a current investment 

Always valued at COST                          

Exception: Reduce carrying amount if 

permanent diminution in value 

Any reduction to Cost and any reversals of 

such reductions are transferred to P&L a/c 

 

Chart AS 13 - Accounting For Investments 

1. 

2. Recognition and Measurement of Investment 
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Disclosure 

1. A/c policies of the entity

2. Classsification of investent into current & long term 

3. Total amount of Quoted & Unquoted investment 

4. Total market value of quoted investment 

5. Profit or loss on the sale of current and long term investments and adjustment of carrying 
amount in investment a/c. 

6. Other Disclosures etc., 

Classification of Income from Investments 

PRE Acquisition Income 

 
POST Acquisition Income 

1. Income Accrued during the PRE acquisition 

period. 

2. But received by the investor after the acquisition. 

3. It shall be treated as recovery of cost of 

investment as it is assumed that Price paid for 

investment includes pre acquisition income. 

 

Income earned and accrued AFTER the 

acquisition and received after the 

acquisition. 

Recognise the income and credited to P & L 

A/c 

 
Deduct the pre-acquisition income from the cost 

of investment. 

 

But in case of equity shares it is difficult to make allocation in Pre and post Acquisition Income. 

4. 

5 What is Accounting Treatment for Right Issue and Rights share? 

If the existing share holders exercise the option 

    Investment A/c   ..................   Dr. 

           To Cash/Bank A/c 

 

If the rights are sold, then amount 

received is an income and it should be 

taken to P&L A/c. 

Exception to the above rule - when the following two conditions are satisfied, the accounting treatment 

differs: 

1. The investments must be acquired on cum-right basis; and 

2. Market value of such investments came down below the cost of investment immediately after the issue of 

right shares;  

(Under above 2 situations, income received by sale of rights is credited to investment account in cost 

column to bring the carrying amount to the market price.) 

If shares purchased under right option If right option sold 

4. 
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Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of 

funds. 

1. Commitment charges  

2. Amortisation of 

discounts/premiums on loan 

5. Exchange differences arising from foreign currency 

borrowings 

3. Finance lease charges 

4. Ancillary costs 

   Qualifying Asset If Asset is not Qualifying Asset 

Charge to P & L Capitalise along with Asset 

Borrowing costs directly related to 

Acquisition of Production of Construction of 

Let us see how to “Recognise Borrowing Cost” 

What is Qualifying 

Asset......? 

Asset that takes a substantial 

period of time to get ready for its 

intended Use or Sale (Generally 12 

months or higher) 

Examples of Qualifying   

A. Tangible - plant and machinery, Building  Intangible 

Assets: Patent 

B. Investment Property. 

C. Inventories that require a substantial period of time to 

make it ready for sale. E.g. Wine                           

Chart AS – 16 Borrowing Cost 

This Accounting Standard Prescribes rules for accounting treatment for borrowing costs  

Whether the borrowing costs should be capitalised along with the assets OR charged to profit 

and loss statement. 
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How much amount should be capitalised? 

If funds are specifically borrowed for 

obtaining a qualifying asset 

If funds are borrowed generally and used 

for obtaining a qualifying asset 

Actual borrowing costs incurred  

on borrowing during the period                         XXX  

Less: Any income on the temporary 

 investments of the borrowed amount                XX 

Amount to be capitalised                                  XXX 

 

Capitalization rate on basis of actual costs 

Aggregate outstanding borrowings 

Exchange differences arising on foreign currency borrowings 

Compute capitalisation rate based on weighted          

average rate of borrowing Cost costs; 

1.Capitalisation Rate  = BC incurred during the year  x 100            

…………………………….         Aggregate outstanding borrowings 

 

1 Aggregate outstanding borrowings 

   = Amount of borrowings x No. of months loan outstanding 

                                               12 Months 

2 Interest to be capitalised   

= Expenditure incurred on the asset x capitalisation 

rate x Period of utilisation / 12 months 

Capitalisation of Borrowing Costs 

The standard has given guidance on the following points: 

 

When ALL of the following 

conditions are satisfied 

 

(a) Expenditure on qualifying 

asset being incurred;  

(b) Borrowing costs are being 

incurred; &  

(c) Activities are in progress. 

When there is NO active 

development or active 

development is interrupted.  

(Not to be suspended if there is 

temporary delay) 

 

When substantially all necessary 

activities are complete i.e. the 

asset is ready for its intended 

use or sale.  

 

Commencement of Capitalisation 

(When to start capitalisation) 

 

Suspension of Capitalisation 

(When to suspend) 

Stop or cease of Capitalisation 

                   (When to stop) 

This provision is applicable only if there is loss due to exchange difference from foreign currency 

borrowings & such loss is debited to P&L A/c. 

Compute Interest that would have been paid if loan was taken in India (at interest rate 

applicable if loan is taken in India.) 
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Disclosures 

 

The entity should disclose the following in its financial statements:  

 

(a) The accounting policy adopted for borrowing costs; &  

(b) The amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the period.  
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 Debenture Redemption Reserve:- (D.R.R) (Sinking Fund) 

  A company issuing debentures shall create D.R.R. from profit available for  

 distribution of dividend & such amount credited to D.R.R shall be utilised only for  

 redemption of debentures. 

  

�  At the end of year 

   

1.  Fixed amount is set aside for redemption  P&L A/c ……………Dr.  

 from P&L A/c.    To D.R.R. A/c  

  (This entry shall be passed every  

  year) 

   

2.  Amount equivalent to current year transfer to D.R.R. Investment A/c ………..Dr.  

 D.R.R. is Invested.        To Bank A/c  

  (Every Year) 

   

3.  Additional entries in 2nd  year / subsequent   

 Year other than last year.   

 a) Receipt of interest on debenture Bank A/c ……Dr.  

    redemption investment A/c.  To Interest on D.R.R Investment A/c 

   

 b) Transfer of Interest to P&L A/c. Interest on D.R.R. Investment A/c  

     To P&L A/c  

   

 Note :- Interest received on D.R.R Investment is generally not re-invested but it is 

 used in business. Hence interest credited to P&L A/c. 

  

  

  

  

  

Redemption of DebenturesRedemption of DebenturesRedemption of DebenturesRedemption of Debentures    
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�  At the end of last year:-  

a)  Receipt of Interest  Same entry as above. (3rd entry) 

   

b)  Setting aside from P&L A/c to D.R.R. A/c Same entry as above.  

   

c)  Sale of D.R.R. Investment A/c Bank A/c …..Dr.  

     To D.R.R. Investment A/c  

   

 - If Profit (Transferred to DRR A/c)      D.R.R. Investment A/c 

         To P&L A/c 

   

 - If Loss (Reverse Entry) 

   

d)  Amount due to debentures holders.  __% of Debenture A/c……….Dr.  

  Premium on Redemption A/c……..Dr.  

        To Debenture holders A/c  

   

e)  Payment to debenture holders.   Debenture holder A/c 

    To Bank A/c 

   

f)  Premium on redemption adjusted against  P&L A/c………….Dr.  

 P&L A/c.     To Premium On redemption A/c 

   

g)  Balance available in D.R.R. shall be  D.R.R. A/c ……..Dr.  

 transfer to General Reserve after      To General Reserve A/c 

 redemption.  
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 1. Redemption By payment in lump sum– (At maturity or expiry of specific period)

 2. Redemption By payment in installment – (At specified Intervals)  

 3. Redemption by Purchase of debentures in open market (Own debenture) 

  

 Let’s see “Redemption of debentures by Purchase of debentures in open market”.  

 (Journal Entry) 

1.  Purchase of own debentures  

     Own debenture A/c ………Dr. (Price excluding interest if price is cum interest) 

     Interest A/c………………….Dr. (Last due date of interest to present date) 

             To Bank A/c 

  

2.  At the time of cancellation. 

     Debenture A/c…..Dr.  

       To Own debenture A/c   

       To profit on cancellation of debentures 

 (Own debenture price shall be exclusive of interest. If price is cum interest shall  

 Be deducted from price). 

  

 If debentures are cancelled (own debentures) the profit or loss on redemption of  

 debentures will be ascertained as 

  

  

  

 In case of Ex-Interest - The interest to the date of transaction will be paid  

 addition to price. 

  

 Note:-  

 1. Minimum requirements which are required to be checked before accounting for  

      redemption of debenture. 

 a) D.R.R. A/c must have minimum balance of 10% of total debentures.  

Face value of debenture     (-)     Price Paid Excluding interest 

       Cancelled 100                   (95 – 5) (Cum-Interest) 

Methods of Redemption of Debentures 
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 b) If balance is less than 10% transferred amount from P&L A/c to D.R.R. A/c 

 to make it 10%. 

 c) D.R.R. investments shall be at least 15% of debentures  expected to be  

 reddemed before 31st march of next year. This shall be invested at the  

 beginning of year on or before 30th April. 

  

 After redemption, balance available in D.R.R. A/c shall be transferred to General  

 Reserve. But only part of debentures are redeemed - then D.R.R. proportionate  

 amount shall transferred to General reserve. 

  

  

  

  

  

   

   

1)   1st show the entry of  Directly cancel the debentures 

-  Purchase of own Debentures. In other word – Debit to debenture A/c

 Own debentures A/c…..Dr. (Ex – Interest)  

 Interest A/c……….……..Dr.  Debenture A/c ……..Dr. 

        To Bank A/c  Interest A/c ………..Dr. 

    To Bank A/c  

2)  2nd Pass Entry for    To profit on cancellation of deb. A/c 

-  Cancellation of own debentures  

 …..% of own debenture A/c …Dr.  

     To own debentures A/c  

     To profit on cancellation of deb. A/c  

   

 If in the question, it is specified to Prepare own debenture A/c, then option - 1  

 shall be adopted but if nothing is specified in the problem then option - 2 shall  

 adopted. 

  

2 Options for cancellation of own debentures  

Option 1 Option 2 
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 If debentures are cancelled then next due date interest shall be paid on remaining 

 debentures. (Period – last due date to – present date). 

  

 Adequacy of D.R.R. – for theory question – Important  

 Minimum Limits of D.R.R. (form notes). 

  

  For debentures issued by Adequacy of Debenture   

   Redemption Reserve (DRR)  

 1.  All India Financial Institutions (AIFIs)  No D.R.R. is required.  

  regulated by Reserve Bank of India and    

  Banking Companies for both public as    

  well as privately placed debentures.   

 2.  Other Financial Institutions (FIs)  D.R.R. will be as applicable to   

  within the meaning   given   in   the  NBFCs registered with RBI.  

  Companies Act.   

 3.  All NBFCs  listed or unlisted with the  No D.R.R. is required.  

  RBI for both public as well as privately    

  placed debentures.   

 4.  Other unlisted companies. D.R.R. shall be 10% of the   

   value of the outstanding   

   debentures issued.  

     

  

 Example – If total debentures are of ₹ 16,00,000 then, 

 minimum D.R.R. = 10 % ₹ 1,60,000 

 But if debentures only of ₹ 8,00,000 are redeemed then,  

 Only ₹ 80,000 (10% of 8,00,000) transfer to general reserve. 
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Question  1                                                                                                                                                                  

The premises of XY Limited were partially destroyed by fire on 1st March, 20X2 and as a result, the business 
was practically disorganised upto 31st August, 20X2. The company is insured under a loss of profits policy 
for ₹1,65,000 having an indemnity period of 6 months. 

From the following information, prepare a claim under the policy: 

 

Particulars  Rs. 

Actual turnover during the period of dislocation (1-3-20X2 to 31-8-20X2) 80,000 

Turnover for the corresponding period (dislocation) in the 12 months immediately before 

the fire (1-3-20X1 to 31-8-20X1) 

2,40,000 

Turnover for the 12 months immediately preceding the fire (1-3-20X1 to 28-2-20X2) 6,00,000 

Net profit for the last financial year 90,000 

Insured standing charges for the last financial year 60,000 

Uninsured standing charges 5,000 

Turnover for the last financial year 5,00,000 

Due to substantial increase in trade, before and up to the time of the fire, it was agreed that an adjustment of 

10% should be made in respect of the upward trend in turnover. The company incurred additional expenses 

amounting to ₹9,300 immediately after the fire and but for this expenditure, the turnover during the period 

of dislocation would have been only ₹55,000. There was also a saving during the indemnity period of ₹2,700 

in insured standing charges as a result of the fire. 

Answer  

                                                        Computation of loss of profit Insurance claim 
 

  ₹ 

(1) 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

(2) 
 

 
 

 
 
 

(3) 

Rate of gross profit: 

Net profit for the last financial year 

Add: Insured standing charges 

 

Turnover for the last financial year 

Rate of gross profit =₹ 1,50,000/₹ 5,00,000 × 100 
 = 30% 

  
Short sales: 

Standard Turnover 

Add: 10% increasing trend 

 

Less: Turnover during the dislocation period (which is at par 

with the indemnity period of 6 months) 

 

Annual (Adjusted) Turnover: 

Annual Turnover (1-3-20X1 to 23-2-20X2) 

Add: 10% increasing trend 

 
90,000 

60,000 

1,50,000 

5,00,000 
 

 
 

2,40,000 

24,000 

2,64,000 
 

(80,000) 

1,84,000 
 

6,00,000 

60,000 

6,60,000 

Insurance claim for loss of Stock & Loss of Profit 
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Note: Assumed that trend adjustment is required on total amount of annual turnover. However, part of the 

annual turnover represents trend adjusted figure. Alternatively, the students may ignore trend and take 

simply annual turnover. The claim would be ₹ 55,000 which is more than the claim computed in Para 

(5). So the Insurance Company would insist on trend adjusted on annual turnover. 

(4)   Additional Expenses: ₹ 

(i) Actual Expenses                                                                                                                         9,300 

(ii) Gross profit on sales generated by additional expenses 

       = 30/100× (₹ 80,000 - ₹ 55,000) 7,500 

 

(i)                  Gross Profit on Annual (Adjusted) Turnover             ×Additional Expenses 

                                                                                                                                                                                                          
Gross Profit shown in the numerator + Uninsured standing charges 

 
30% on ₹ 6,60,000 

                   ×     ₹ 9,300 =                                                     9,071  
30% on ₹ 6,60,000 + ₹ 5,000 

 

Least of the above three figures, i.e. ₹ 7,500 allowable. 

(5)   Claim: 

 

Loss of profit on short sales (30% on ₹ 1,84,000)                               55,200 

Add: Allowable additional expenses                                                             7,500  

                                                                                                                                62,700        

Less: Savings in insured standing charges                                                (2,700)  

                                                                                                                                60,000 

Application of average clause   60,000 x 1,65,000 / 1,98,000           50,000 

 

Master Problem 

 
Question  2                                                                                                                                                                 

 

On 19th May, 2011, the premises of Mr. Gyan were destroyed by fire, but sufficient records were saved, wherefrom 

the following particulars were ascertained: 

 

Particulars Amount is Rs.  

Stock at cost on 1.1.2010     36,750 

Value of Stock on 31.12.2010  39,800 

Purchases less returns during 2010  1,99,000 

Sales less return during 2010  2,43,500 

Purchases less returns during 1.1.2011 to 19.5.2011  

(Valued at 90% of Cost Price)  
81,000 

Sales less returns during 1.1.2011 to 19.5.2011 1,55,600 

Wages from 1.1.2011 to 19.5.2011  30,000 

 

In valuing the stock for the balance Sheet as at 31st December, 2010, Rs. 1,150 had been written off on certain 

stock which was a poor selling line having the cost Rs. 3,450. A portion of these goods were sold in March, 2011 

at a loss of Rs. 125 on original cost of Rs 1,725. The remainder of this stock was now estimated to be worth the 

original cost. Subject to the above exceptions, gross profit has remained at a uniform rate throughout. The 

stock salvaged was Rs 2,900. Policy is taken for Rs. 30,000  

Additional Information: 
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1. Sales Upto 19th May, 2011 includes Rs. 4,000 for which goods had not been dispatched. 

 

2. Purchases Upto 19th May, 2011 did not include Rs. 10,000 for which purchase invoices had not been 

received from suppliers, though goods have been received in Godown. 

 

3. Purchases includes purchase of machinery costing Rs. 3000. 

 

4. Wages includes wages Rs. 2,000 for installation of machinery. 

 

5. Sales of 1.1.2011 to 19.5.2011 include goods sold on approval basis amounting to Rs.  40,000. No 

approval has been received in respect of 3/4th of the goods sold on approval. 

 

6. Sale value of goods drawn by partners Rs. 10,000 

 

7. Cost of goods sent to consignee on 15th April, 2011  lying unsold withthem Rs. 7,000  

 

8. Cost of goods distributed as free samples Rs. 1,500 

 

9. The insurance company also admitted firefighting expenses of 4000. 

 

10. Selling Expenses – Rs. 5000, Administration Expenses – Rs. 8800, Financial Exp. - Rs. 3200. 

 

11. Gross profit of current year shows 5% increasing trend on sales. 

  

Show the amount of the claim of stock destroyed by fire.  Memorandum Trading Account to be prepared for the 

period from 1-1-2011to 19-5-2011 for normal and abnormal items. 

 

Solution  
Trading Account 

(For the Period 1-1-2011 to 19-5-2011) 

  

Dr. Cr. 

Particulars Normal Abnormal Total Particulars Normal Abnormal Total 

To Opening 

Stock 

37,500 

 

3,450 

 

40,950 

 

By Sales less 

returns (W.N. 4) 

1,20,000 

 

1600 

 

1,21,600 

 

To Purchase 

(W.N. 1) 

88,000 

 

- 88,000 

 

By Loss on Sale 

 

- 125 

 

125 

To wages  

(W.N. 2) 

28,000 

 

- 28,000 

 

By Goods with 

Consignee 

7000 

 

- 7000 

 

To  Gross Profit 

(Normal Sales x 

25%) (W.N.3) 

30,000 

 

- 30,000 

 

By Goods with 

Customer 

 (W.N. 5) 

22,500 

 

- 

 

22,500 

 

    By Closing 

Stock  

(Bal. Figure) 

34,000 

 

1725 

 

35,725 

 

 183500 3450 186950 

 

 183500 3450 186950 

 

 

Trading A/c for the year ended 31st December 2010 

Particulars  Amount (₹) Particulars  Amount (₹) 

To opening stock 36.750 By sales return  2,43,500 
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To purchase 1,99,000    

To G.P. 48,700 By closing stock        

(+) Amt written off to 

restore at cost 

 

39800 

1150 

 

 

 

40,950 

 2,84,450   2,84,450 

 

Calculation of claim for loss of stock 

Particulars  Amount (₹) 

Stock lost due to fire  35,725 

(-) salvaged value  (2,900) 

(+) fire fighting expenses  4000 

 36,825 

 Average clause = loss x Insured Value/Insurable Value  

                               = 36,825 x 30000/35,725 

                               = 30,924 

Note: - As policy amount is 30,000 & loss is 30,924. Maximum claim can be 30,000 only  

Working Notes 

1. Adjusted Purchases:  

Cost Price of Purchase:    81,000   = 90% (Stock shown at 90% of Cost) 

                                                  ?             = 100%          

 

                                            81000/90 x 100 = 90,000 

Particulars Amount 

 Cost Price                                                      90,000 

(+) Unrecorded Purchase  10,000 

(-) Purchase of Machinery (it was included in Purchase by mistake) 3000 

(-) Drawings at Cost     (10,000 – 25%) 7,500 

(-) Free Sample  1,500 

                                                           Total 88,000 

 

2. Wages: 

Particulars Amount 

Wages (as given) 

Less: Wages for installation 

30,000 

2,000 

Wages to be debited to trading A/c    28,000     

 

 

3. Percentage of Gross Profit  (on the Basis of last year’s trading Account) 

Percentage of Gross Profit       = G.P./ Sales x 100      

                                                          = 48,700/2,43,500  x 100 

                                                          = 20  

                                                          = 20%  + 5 % Increase in G.P  in current year (Given) 

 

Total % of Gross profit              = 25 % 
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4.  Sales 

Particulars  Amount (₹) 

Sales given    1,55,600 

(-) goods not dispatched  

 

 4,000 

(-) sales on approval (40000 x 3/4)  (Approval not received) 30,000 

 

 1,21,600 

 

5.  Cost price of goods with customer 

Particulars  Amount (₹) 

Sales on approval – Gross Profit 

          (30,000  -   25%) 

 

22,500 

 

6.  Selling Expenses of ₹ 5000,  Administration expenses of ₹ 8800, Financial expenses of ₹ 3200 is 

excluded as these expenses are part of Profit and Loss Account.  
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Question  No. 1                                                                                                                                                                      

 

A Ltd. purchases a plant on hire purchase basis for ₹ 1,00,000 (cash price ₹ 86,000) and makes the payment 

in the following order: 

Down payment ₹ 20,000, 

1st instalment after one year ₹ 40,000; 

2nd instalment after two years ₹ 20,000; 

Last instalment after three years. 

You are required to calculate: (i) total interest and (ii) interest included in each instalment. 

(b)   Shyam purchased from Rang Ltd. a colour T.V set on 1st October, 2011 on the hire purchase system. The 

cash price of the T.V set was ₹ 15,000.  Terms of payment were ₹ 1,150 down payment and half yearly 

instalments of ₹ 4,000 each, over two years. The first instalment was to be paid on 31st March, 2012.  Rate 

of interest was 12% p.a.  Shyam could not pay the second instalment due on 30th September, 2012 and as a 

consequence, Rang Ltd. repossessed the T.V set after fulfilling legal formalities. Prepare Shyam’s Account 

and Goods Repossessed Account in Rang Ltd.'s books. Assume that the estimated value of the T.V set at the 

time of repossession was ₹ 12,000 and after an expenditure of ₹ 850 on repairs and repacking, the 

company resold it on 6th December, 2012 for cash to one of its employees at a special discount of 10 

percent on cash price i.e. for ₹ 13,500. Rang Ltd. closes its books of accounts every year on 31st March. 
 

Answer 
 

a) (i)  Total interest = Hire Purchase price - Cash price = ₹ 1,00,000 - ₹ 86,000 =₹ 14,000 

(ii)  Hire purchase price outstanding at the beginning of each year 

 
 

  ₹ 

(a) 

 

(b) 

(c) 

Hire purchase price 

Less: Down payment 

Hire Purchase Price outstanding at the beginning of the 1st year 

Less: 1st instalment 

Hire Purchase price outstanding at the beginning of the 2nd year 

Less: 2nd instalment 

Hire Purchase Price outstanding at the beginning of the 3rd year 

Less: 3rd instalment 

1,00,000 

(20,000) 

80,000 

(40,000) 

40,000 

(20,000) 

20,000 

(20,000) 

Nil 

Ratio of (a): (b): (c) = 80:40:20 or 4:2:1 

Amount of interest included in instalments: 

 

1st instalment 4/7 x ₹ 14,000 ₹ 8,000 

2nd instalment 2/7 x ₹ 14,000 ₹ 4,000 

3rd instalment 1/7 x ₹ 14,000 ₹ 2,000 

 

 

 

Hire-Purchase Instalment Payment System 
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(b)                                                                     Shyam’s Account in the books of Rang  Ltd. 
 
 
 

Goods Repossessed Account 
 

  ₹   ₹ 

2012 

Sept. 30  

Dec. 6 

 

To Shyam Restaurant - Estimated 

value of T.V. set on repossession  

To Bank expenses on repairs, 

repacking etc. 

To Profit & Loss Account -  Profit 

on resale 

 

                     

12,000 

                          

850 

                         

650 

2012 

Dec. 6 

 

By Cash – Sale 

proceeds 

 

13,500 

  13,500   13,500 

 
 

Question  No. 2                                                                                                                                                                      

 

 (a)   On 1.1.2011 Shaan Ltd. purchased a machine on hire purchase basis. The terms of agreement provided 
for 40% as cash down payment and the balance in three instalments of ₹ 1,63,000 on 31.12.2012, ₹ 
1,20,000 on 31.12.2013 and ₹ 1,10,000 on 31.12.2014. The rate of interest charged by the vendor is 10% 

p.a. compound annually. You are required to calculate the cash Price and periodic interest charged by higher 
vendor. 

(b)   On 1.1.2011 Beeta Ltd. purchased a machine from Yama Ltd. on hire purchase basis. The terms of 

agreement provided for 40% as cash down payment and the balance in three instalment of ₹ 1,30,000 on 

31.12.2011, ₹ 1,42,000 on 31.12.2013 and ₹ 1,10,000 on 31.12.2014. The rate of interest charged by the 

vendor is 10% p.a. compounded annually. You are required to calculate the cash price when 2nd instalment 

is payable after two years. 

 

 

  ₹   ₹ 

2011 

Oct. 1 

 

2012 

Mar. 31 

 

 

 

To Sales Account - Cash price 

 

To Interest A/c - on ₹ 13,850 

@ 12% p.a. for six months 

 

 

 

15,000 

 

 

831 

 

 

2011 

Oct. 1 

 

2012 

Mar. 31 

 

 

 

By Bank -  down payment 

 

By Bank – First instalment 

 

By Balance c/ 

 

 

1,150 

 

4,000 

 

10,681 

 
  15,831 

 

  15,831 

 
2012 

 

Apr. 1 

 

Sept. 30 

 

 

Sept. 30 

 

 

To Balance b/d  

 

To Interest A/c - on ₹ 10,681 

@ 12% p.a. for six months 

 

To Profit & Loss A/c - Profit 

on repossession of T.V. set 

 

 

10,681 

 

641 

 

 

 

678 

2012 

Sept. 30 

By Goods Repossessed /c: 

estimated value of T.V. set on 

repossession 

 

12,000 

  12,000   12,000 
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Answer  

 

(a) Statement Showing the Computation of Cash Price and Periodic Interest 
 

A 

Instalment 

B 

Balance due at the 
end after the 
payment of 
instalment 

C 

Instalment 

Amount 

D=B+C 

Total Amount 

Due at the end 

before the 

payment of 

instalment 

E = 

Interest 

Dx10/110 

F=D-E 

Balance 

Due at the 

Beginning 

III 

II 

I 

NIL 

1,00,000 

2,00,000 

3,30,000 

1,10,000 

1,20,000 

1,63,000 

- 

1,10,000 

2,20,000 

3,63,000 

3,30,000 

10,000 

20,000 

33,000 

30,000 

1,00,000 

2,00,000 

3,30,000 

3,00,000 

Let Cash Price be X 

      X  = ₹ 3,00,000 + 40% of X 

    0.6 X = ₹ 3,00,000 

       X = ₹ 3,00,000/0.6  = ₹ 5,00,000, cash price = ₹ 5,00,000 

(b)  Statement Showing the Computation of Cash Price and Periodic Interest 
 

A B 

Balance Due at   

the   end After 
the Payment   of 
Instalment 

C 

Instalment 

D =  B +C 

Total Amount 
Due   at   the end    
Before the   
payment of 
instalment 

E =Dx10/110 

interest 

F=D-E 

Balance Due 
at the 
Beginning 

III 

II 

 

I 

Nil 

1,00,000 

2,20,000 

2,00,000 

1,10,000 

1,42,000 

- 

1,30,000 

1,10,000 

2,42,000 

2,20,000 

3,30,000 

10,000 

22,000 

20,000 

30,000 

1,00,000 

2,20,000 

2,00,000 

3,00,000 

Let Cash Price be X 

X = ₹ 3,00,000 + 40% of X 

0.6 X = ₹ 3,00,000 

X = ₹ 3,00,000/0.6 = ₹ 5,00,000, cash price = ₹ 5,00,000 
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Question  No.  3                                                                                                                                                                     

Lucky bought 2 tractors from Happy on 1-10-2011 on the following terms: 

 

Particulars Rs. 

Down payment 5,00,000 

1st installment at the end of first year 2,65,000 

2nd installment at the end of 2nd year 2,45,000 

3rd installment at the end of 3rd year 2,75,000 

Interest is charged at 10% p.a. 

Lucky provides depreciation @ 20% on the diminishing balances. 

On 30-9-2014 Lucky failed to pay the 3rd installment upon which Happy repossessed 1 tractor. 

Happy agreed to leave one tractor with Lucky and adjusted the value of the tractor against the 

amount due. The tractor taken over was valued on the basis of 30% depreciation annually on written 

down basis. The balance amount remaining in the vendor's account after the above adjustment was 

paid by Lucky after 3 months with interest @ 18% p.a. 

You are required to: 

(1)   Calculate the cash price of the tractors and the interest paid with each installment. 

(2)   Prepare Tractor Account and Happy Account in the books of Lucky assuming that books are 

closed on September 30 every year. Figures may be rounded off to the nearest rupee. 
 
 

Answer 
 

(i) Calculation of Interest and Cash Price 

 
    

No. of 

installments 

Outstanding 

balance at the 

end after the 

payment of 

installment 

Amount due  

at the time of  

installment

  

Outstanding 

balance at 

the end before 

the payment of 

installment 

 

Interest Outstanding 

balance at 

the 

beginning 

 

[1] [2] [3] [4]= 2 +3 [5]= 4 x 10/110 [6]= 4-5 

3rd - 2,75,000 2,75,000 25,000 2,50,000 

2nd 2,50,000 2,45,000 4,95,000 45,000 4,50,000 

1st  4,50,000 2,65,000 7,15,000 65,000 6,50,000 
 

Total cash price = ₹ 6,50,000+5,00,000 (down payment) = ₹ 11,50,000. 
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In the books of Lucky 

Tractors Account 

 

Date Particulars ₹ Date Particulars ₹ 

1.10.2011 To Happy a/c 11,50,000 30.9.2012 By Depreciation A/c 2,30,000 

    Balance old 9,20,000 

  11,50,000   11,50,00

0 

1.10.2012 To Balance b/d 9,20,000 30.9.2013 By Depreciation A/c 1,84,000 

    Balance c/d 7,36,000 

  9,20,000   9,20,000 

1.10.2013 To Balance bld 7,36,000 30.9.2014 By Depreciation A/c 1,47,200 

    By Happy a/c (Value of 1 

Tractor taken over after 

depreciation for 

3 years @30% p.a.) {5,75,000- 

(1,72,500+ 1,20,750+84,525)} 

 

 

1,97225 

 

    By Loss transferred to Profit 

and Loss a/c on surrender 

(Bal. fig.) or  (2,94,400-

1,97,225) 

 

97,175 

    By Balance c/d  

1/2 (7,36,000 -1,47,200 = 

5,88,800) 

 

2,94,400 

  7,36,000   7,36,000 

 

Happy Account 

 

Date Particulars ₹ Date Particulars ₹ 

1.10.11 To Bank  

(down payment) 

5,00,000 1.10.11 By Tractors a/c 11,50,000 

30.9.12 To Bank  

(1st  Installment) 

2,65,000 30.9.12 By Interest a/c 65,000 

 To Balance cld 4,50,000    

  12 ,15,000   12 ,15,000 

30.9.13 To Bank (2nd  

Installment) 

2,45,000 1.10.12 By Balance b/d 4,50,000 

 To Balance c/d 2,50,000 30.9.13 By Interest a/c 45,000 

  4,95,000   4,95,000 
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30.9.14 To Tractor a/c 1,97,225 1.10.13 By Balance b/d 2,50,000 

 To Balance cld 77,775 30.9.14 By Interest a/c 25,000 

  2,75,000   2,75,000 

31.12.14 To Bank (Amount 

settled after 3 months) 

81,275 1.10.14 By Balance bid 77,775 

   31.12.14 By Interest a/c 

(@18% on bal.)  

( 77,775 x 3112 x 

18/100) 

 

3,500 

 

  81,275   81,275 
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  Master Problem 

 
Question No.  1                                                                                                                                         

Following are the details of Investments made by Mr. Gyaan, Prepare Investment Accounts for 

following investments assuming that Mr. Gyaan closes his books of accounts on 31st March, 2015: 

1.  12% Debentures of Face Value ₹ 100 of M/s. A Ltd. as current investments. 

 

Date Particulars 

1-4-2014 Opening balance 4,000 debentures costing ₹ 98 each 

1-6-2014 Purchased 2,000 debentures @ ₹ 120 cum interest 

1-9-2014 Sold 3,000 debentures @ ₹ 110 cum interest 

1-12-2014 Sold 2,000 debentures @ ₹ 105 ex interest 

31-1-2015 Purchased 3,000 debentures @ ₹ 100 ex interest 

31-3-2015 Market value of the investments ₹ 105 each 

Interest due dates are 30th June and 31st December. 

He incurred 2% brokerage for all his transactions. Assume that Mr.Gyaan follows FIFO method for 

Debentures. 

 

2. 12% State Government Bonds having face value ₹ 100 

 

Date Particulars 

01.04.2014 Opening Balance (1200 bonds) book value of ₹ 126,000 

02.05.2014 Purchased 2,000 bonds ₹ 100 cum interest 

30.09.2014 Sold  1,500 bonds at ₹ 105 ex interest 

Interest on the bonds is received on 30th June and 31st Dec. each year. 

Assume that Mr.Gyaan follows Average Cost Methodmethodfor Bonds. 

 

3. Equity Shares of X Ltd. With face value of ₹ 10 each. 

 

Date Particulars 

01.04.2014 Opening Balance (1000 Equity Shares) book value of ₹ 2,00,000 

15.04.2014 Purchased 5,000 equity shares @ ₹ 200,Brokerage of 1% was paid in addition 
(Face Value of shares ₹ 10) 

03.06.2014 The company announced a bonus issue of 2 shares forevery 5 shares held. 

16.08.2014 The company made a rights issue of 1 share for every 7 shares held at ₹250 per 
share. The entire money was payable by 31.08.2014. 

22.8.2014 Rights to the extent of 20% were sold @ ₹ 60. Theremaining rights were 
subscribed. 

Investment Accounts 
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02.09.2014 Dividend @ 15% for the year ended 31.03.2014 wasreceived on 16.09.2014 

15.12.2014 Sold3,000 shares@ ₹ 300. Brokerage of 1% wasincurred extra. 

15.01.2015 
Received interim dividend @10% for the year 2014-15 

31.03.2015 The shares were quoted in the stock exchange @ ₹ 220 

 

Assume that Mr.Gyaan follows Average Cost Methodmethodfor Equity shares. 

 

 
Answer  
 

Investment A/c(Scrip: 12% Debentures) for the year ending on 31-3-2015 

(Interest Payable on 30th June and 31st December) 

 

Date Particulars Nominal 
Value 

Interest Cost Date Particulars Nominal 
Value 

Interest Cost 

1.4.2014 

 

To Balance 

b/d 

 

 

4,00,000 

 

 

12,000 

 

 

3,92,000 

 

  

30.6.2014 

 

 

 

By Bank 

(6,00,000x6%) 

- 

 

36,000 

 

 

- 

1.6.2014 To Bank 
(W.N. 1) 

2,00,000 10,000 2,34,800 1.9.2014 By Bank(W.N. 
2) 

3,00,000 6,000 3,17,400 

1.9.2014 To Profit & 
Loss 
A/c(W.N. 2) 

- -  23,400 1.12.2014 By Bank(W.N. 
3) 

2,00,000 10,000 2,05,800 

31.1.2015 To Bank 3,00,000 3,000 3,06,000 1.12.2014 By Profit & 
Loss a/c(W.N. 
3) 

- - 9,600 

31.3.2015 To Profit & 
Loss A/c 
(Bal. Fig,) 

- 45,000 - 31.12.14 By Bank 
(1,00,000 x 
6%) 

- 6,000 - 

     31.3.2015 By Profit & Loss 
A/c (b.f.) 

- - 3,400 

     31.3.2015 By Balance c/d 

(W.N.4) 

4,00,000 12,000 4,20,000 

  9,00,000 70,000 9,56,200   9,00,000 70,000 9,56,200 
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12% Govt. Bonds (for the year ended 31st March, 2015) 

(Interest Payable on 30th June and 31st December) 

 

Date Particulars Nominal 
Value 

Interest Cost Date Particulars Nominal 
Value 

Interest Cost 

1.4.14 To Balance 
b/d 

1,20,000 3,600 1,26,000 30.6.14 By Bank A/c 
(Interest) 

(3,20,000 x 
12% x 6/12) 

- 19,200 - 

2.5.14 To Bank A/c 2,00,000 8,000 1,92,000 30.9.14 By Bank A/c 1,50,000 4,500 1,57,500 

30.9.14 To P&LA/c 
(Profit on 

Sale) 

(W.N.5) 

- - 8,438 31.12.14 By Bank A/c 
(Interest) 

(1,70,000 X 

12% X 6/12) 

- 10,200 - 

31.3.15 P & L A/c 
(Interest) 

(b.f.) 

- 27,400 - 31.3.15 By Bal. c/d 
(W.N. 6) 

1,70,000 5,100 1,68,938 

  3,20,000 39,000 3,26,438   3,20,000 39,000 3,26,438 

 

 

Investments in Equity shares of X Ltd. (for year ended 31.3.2015) 

 

Date Particulars No. Dividend Cost Date Particulars No. Dividend Cost 

01.04.14 To Balance B/d 1000 - 2,00,000      

15.4.14 ToBank A/c 
(W.N. 7) 

5,000    - 10,10,000 16.9.14 By Bank 
(Dividend) 

- 1500 7,500 

3.6.14 ToBonus Issue 2,400 -  - 15.12.14 By Bank 

(Sale) 

3,000 - 8,91,000 

31.8.14 ToBank A/c 

(W.N. 8) 

960 - 2,40,000 15.1.15 By Bank 
(interim 

dividend) 

- 6,360 - 

15.12.14 To P & L 
A/c(profit)(W.N. 

9) 

- - 4,28,660      

31.3.15 To P & L A/c 
(b.f.) 

- 7,860 - 31.3.15 By Bal. c/d 
(W.N. 10) 

6,360 - 9,80,160 

  9360 7,860 18,78,660   9360 7,860 18,78,660 
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Working Notes for 12% Debentures 

 
1. 1.6.2014 Purchase cost of 2,000 debentures 

 
 

200 Debentures @ ₹ 120 cum interest 2,40,000 

Add: Brokerage @ 2% 4,800 

2,44,800 

Less: Interest for 5 months (10,000) 

                                                                   Purchase cost of 2,000 debentures 2,34,800 

  

 
2. 1.9.2014 Sale value& Profit 0n 3,000 debentures 

₹ 

Sales price of debentures cum interest (3,000 x ₹ 110) 3,30,000 

Less: Brokerage @ 2% (6,600) 

   3,23,400 

Less: Interest for 2 months (6,000) 

Sale value for 3,000 debentures 3,17,400 

Less: Cost Price of Debentures      3,92,000 x  3000 Deb. (2,94,000) 
4,000 Deb. 

Profit on sale 23,400 

 

3. 1.12.2014 Loss on sale of debentures as on  

₹ 

Sales price of debentures (2,000 x ₹ 105) 2,10,000 

Less: Brokerage @ 2% (4,200) 

                             2,05,800 

Less: Cost price of Debentures(98,000 + 1,17,400)     2,15,400 

                                                                                                            Loss on sale 9,600 

 

4. Valuation of closing balance as on 31.3.2015: 

A. Market value of 4,000 Debentures at ₹ 105 = ₹ 4,20,000 

 

B. Cost price of 1,000 debentures at   ₹ 1,17,400&3,000 debentures at ₹ 3,06,000 

              Therefore total cost is (1,17,400 + 3,06,000)                                                                   ₹ 4 23 400 

 

Value at the end =  4,20,000 i.e. whichever is less 

 

Working Notes for 12% Bonds 
 

5. Profit on sale of bonds on 30.9.14 

= Sales proceeds - Average cost 

Sales proceeds = ₹ 1,57,500 
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Average cost = [(1,26,000+1,92,000) x 1,500/3,200] = 1,49,062.50 

Profit = 1,57,500- ₹ 1,49,062.50=₹ 8,438 (approx.) 

 

6. Valuation of bonds on 31st March, 2015 

Cost = 3,18,000/3,200 x 1,700 = 1,68,937.50 

 

Working Notes for Equity Shares 

 

7. Cost of equity shares purchased on 15/4/2014 

= Cost + Brokerage 

= (5,000 x₹ 200) + 1% of (5,000 x ₹ 200) = ₹ 10,10,000 

 

8. Right Issue as on 31.08.14 

 Rights Available :   { 1,000 + 5000 + 2400 / 7} =          1200 Shares 

       Rights Sold 1200 x 20% = 240 at 60 each therefore 14,400 (240 x 60) transferred to P&L A/c 

       Rights Purchased 1200 x 80% = 960  at ₹ 250 each therefore ₹ 2,40,000  (960 shares x 250 each) debited to investment account. 

 

9. Sale proceeds and Profit on Sale of equity shares on 15/12/2014 

Sales proceeds (3000 x 300) - 1%₹ 8,91,000 

Less: Average cost[(2,00,000 + 10,10,000+2,00,000-7,500) x 3,000/9,360] 

₹ [14,42,500 x 3,000/9,360] =        4,62,340 

Profit     =₹ 8,91,000 - ₹ 4,62,340=₹ 4,28,660. 

 

10. Valuation of equity shares on 31st March, 2015 

Cost =₹ {14,42,500 x 6360/9,360} =                                                                                             ₹      9,80,160 

Market Value = 6,360 shares x ₹ 220 = ₹13,99,200 

 

Closing stock of equity shares has been valued at ₹ 9,80,160 i.e. cost being lower than the market value. 
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The following is the Balance Sheet of Manish and Suresh as on 1st April, 2016: 
 

Liabilities ₹ Assets ₹ 

Capital: 

Manish 

Suresh 

Creditors for goods 

Creditors for expenses 

 

1,50,000 

75,000 

30,000 

25,000 
 

2,80,000 

Building 

Machinery 

Stock 

Debtors 

Bank 

1,00,000 

65,000 

40,000 

50,000 

25,000 
 

2,80,000 

They give you the following additional information: 

 

(i) Creditors' Velocity* 1.5 month & Debtors' Velocity* 2 months. 
(ii) Stock level is maintained uniformly in value throughout all over the year. 
(iii) Depreciation on machinery is charged @ 10%, Depreciation on building @ 5% in the current year. 
(iv) Cost price will go up 15% as compared to last year and also sales in the current year  will increase 

by 25% in volume. 
(v) Rate of gross profit remains the same. 
(vi) Business Expenditures are ₹ 50,000 for the year.  All expenditures are paid off in cash. 
(vii) Closing stock is to be valued on LIFO Basis. 

(viii) All sales and purchases are on credit basis and there are no cash purchases and 

sales. 

Prepare Trading, Profit and Loss Account, Trade Debtors A/c and Trade Creditors 

A/c for the year ending 31.03.2017. 
 

(* Velocity indicates the no. of times the creditors and debtors are turned over a year.) 
 

Answer 

Trading and Profit and Loss account for the year ending 31st March, 2017 
 

Particulars ₹ Particulars ₹ 

To   Opening Stock 

To   Purchases (Working Note) 

To   Gross Profit c/d (20% on 
sales) 
 
 

To   Business Expenses 

To   Depreciation on: 

Machinery 6,500 

Building 5,000 

To   Net profit 

40,000 

3,45,000 
 

86,250 

4,71,250 

50,000 
 
 
 

11,500 

24,750 

86,250 

By   Sales 

By   Closing Stock 
 
 
 
 

By   Gross Profit b/d 

4,31,250 

40,000 
 
 
 

4,71,250 

86,250 
 
 
 
 
 
 

86,250 

Question No. 1                                                                                                                           

Accounting from Incomplete Records 
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Trade Debtors Account 
 

Particulars ₹ Particulars ₹ 

To   Balance b/d 

To   Sales 

50,000 

4,31,250 

4,81,250 

By   Bank (bal.fig.) 

By   Balance c/d (1/6 of 4,31,250) 

4,09,375 

71,875 

4,81,250 

Trade Creditors Account 
 

Particulars ₹ Particulars ₹ 

To   Bank (Balancing figure) 

To   Balance c/d/ (1/8 of ₹ 3,45,000) 

3,31,875 

43,125 

3,75,000 

By   Balancing b/d 

By   Purchases 

30,000 

3,45,000 

3,75,000 

 

Working Note: 
 

  ₹ 

(i) 

A 

B 

C 

D 

E 
 

(ii) 

A 

B 
 

C 

D 

E 

F 

Calculation of Rate of Gross Profit earned during previous year 

Sales during previous year (₹ 50,000 x 12/2) 

Purchases (₹ 30,000 x 12/1.5) 

Cost of Goods Sold (₹ 40,000 + ₹ 2,40,000 - ₹ 40,000) 

Gross Profit (A-C) 
                                                                                                                                                
Rate of Gross Profit  ₹ 60,000/₹ 3,00,000 x 100 
  

Calculation of sales and Purchases during current year 

Cost of goods sold during previous year 

Add: Increases in volume @ 25 % 
 

Add: Increase in cost @ 15% 

Cost of Goods Sold during Current Year 

Add: Gross profit @ 25% on cost (20% on sales) 

Sales for current year [D+E] 

 

3,00,000 

2,40,000 

2,40,000 

60,000 

20% 
 

₹ 

2,40,000 

60,000 

3,00,000 

45,000 

3,45,000 

86,250 

4,31,250 

 

 

Question 2                                                                                                                                      

A trader keeps his books of account under single entry system. On 31st March, 2010 his statement of 
affairs stood as follows: 

    

Liabilities ₹ Assets ₹ 

Trade Creditors 5,80,000 Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings 1,00,000 

Bills Payable 1,25,000 Stock 6,10,000 

Outstanding Expenses 45,000 Trade Debtors 1,48,000 

Capital Account 2,50,000 Bills Receivable 60,000 

  Unexpired Insurance 2,000 

  Cash in Hand and at Bank 80,000 

 10,00,000  10,00,000 

55



www.teachme.store            (8888788889) Accounting From Incomplete Records  

 

By CMA, CS Rohan Nimbalkar   
 

The following was the summary of Cash-book for the year ended 31st March, 2011: 
 

Receipts ₹  Payments ₹  

Cash in Hand and at Bank on 
1st  April, 2011 

Cash Sales 

Receipts from Trade Debtors 

Receipts for Bills Receivable 

 

80,000 

73,80,000 

15,10,000 

3,40,000 

Payments to Trade 
Creditors 

Payments for Bills payable 

Sundry Expenses paid 

Drawings 

Cash in Hand and at Bank 

on 31st March, 2011 

75,07,000 

8,15,000 

6,20,700 

2,40,000 
 

1,27,300 

93,10,000 93,10,000 

 

Discount allowed to trade debtors and received from trade creditors amounted to ₹ 36,000 and  

₹ 28,000 respectively. Bills endorsed amounted to ₹ 15,000. Annual Fire Insurance premium of  

₹  6,000 was paid every year on 1st August for the renewal of the policy. Furniture, fixtures and  

fittings were subject to depreciation @ 15% per annum on diminishing balances method. 

You are also informed about the following balances as on 31st March, 2011: 

 

 ₹  

Stock 6,50,000 

Trade Debtors 1,52,000 

Bills Receivable 75,000 

Bills Payable 1,40,000 

Outstanding Expenses 5,000 

The trader maintains a steady gross profit ratio of 10% on sales. 

 

Prepare Trading and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2011 and Balance Sheet as 

at that date. 

 

Answer 
 

Trading and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2011 

 

Particulars  ₹ Particulars ₹ ₹ 

To Opening Stock 6,10,000 By Sales   

To Purchases (W.N. 3) 84,10,000 Cash 73,80,000  

To Gross profit c/d 9,30,000 Credit (W.N. 2) 19,20,000 93,00,000 

(10% of 93,00,000)  By Closing stock  6,50,000 

    

 

 99,50,000   99,50,000 

To Sundry expenses (W.N. 6) 5,80,700 By Gross profit b/d  9,30,000 

To Discount allowed 36,000 By Discount received  28,000 

To Depreciation 15,000    

(15% ₹  1,00,000)     

To Net Profit 3,26,300    
     

 9,58,000    
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2011 

 

 

Liabilities Amount Amount Assets Amount 

 ₹ ₹  ₹ 

Capital 
  

Furniture & Fittings  1,00,000  

  
Opening balance 2,50,000 

 

  
Less : Depreciation   (15,000) 

 

85,000 

 
Less : Drawing (2,40,000) 

  

Stock 

 

6,50,000 

 

 10,000 

  
Trade Debtors 

 

1,52,000 

 

Add : Net profit for the years   
3,26,300 

 

3,36,300 

 
Bills receivable 

 

75,000 

 
 

Bills payable 
 

1,40,000 

 
Unexpired insurance 

 

2,000 

 

Trade creditors  
6,10,000 

 
Cash in hand & at bank 

 1,27,300 
Outstanding expenses  5,000 

   
   

10,91,300  10,91,300 

 

 

Working Notes : 
 

1. Bills Receivable Account 

 

 

Particulars  ₹ Particulars  ₹ 

To Balance b/d 60,000 By Cash 3,40,000 

To Trade debtors 

 

3,70,000 

 

By Trade creditors 

(Bills endorsed) 

15,000 

 

  By Balance c/d 75,000 

 4,30,000  4,30,000 

 

2. Trade Debtors Account 
 

Particulars ₹ Particulars  ₹ 

To Balance b/d 1,48,000 By Cash/Bank 15,10,000 

To Credit sales  (Bal. fig.) 19,20,000 
By Discount allowed 36,000 

  
By Bills receivable 3,70,000 

  
By Balance c/d 1,52,000 

  

20,68,000  20,68,000 
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3. Memorandum Trading Account 

 

Particulars ₹ Particulars  ₹ 

To Opening stock 6,10,000 By Sales 93,00,000 

To Purchases (Balancing figure) 84,10,000 By Closing stock 6,50,000 

To Gross Profit (10% on sales) 9,30,000   

 99,50,000  99,50,000 

 
4. Bills Payable Account 

Particulars ₹ Particulars  ₹ 

 
To Cash/Bank 

 
8,15,000 

 
By Balance b/d 

 
1,25,000 

 
To Balance c/d 

 
1,40,000 

 
By Creditors (balancing figure) 

 
8,30,000 

  
9,55,000 

 9,55,000 

 

5. Trade Creditors Account 

Particulars ₹ Particulars  ₹ 

To Cash/Bank 75,07,000 By Balance b/d 5,80,000 

To Discount received 28,000 By Purchases  84,10,000 

To Bills receivable 15,000 (as calculated in W.N. 3)  

To Bills payable 8,30,000   

To Balance c/d (bal. figure) 6,10,000   

 89,90,000  89,90,000 
 

 

6. Computation of sundry expenses to be charged to Profit & Loss A/c 
 

Particulars  ₹ 

Sundry expenses paid (as per cash book) 6,20,700 

Add : Prepaid expenses as on 31–3–2010 2,000 

 6,22,700 

Less : Outstanding expenses as on 31–3–2010 (45,000) 

 5,77,700 

Add : Outstanding expenses as on 31–3–2011 5,000 

 5,82,700 

Less : Prepaid expenses as on 31–3–2011  (Insurance paid till July, 2011) (2,000) 

 5,80,700 
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Question No. 3                                                                                                                                                       

 

Lokesh, who keeps books by single entry, had submitted his Income-tax returns to Income-tax 

authorities showing his incomes to be as follows: 

 

Particulars  ₹  

Year ending March 31, 2005 33,075 

Year ending March 31, 2006 33,300 

Year ending March 31, 2007 35,415 

Year ending March 31, 2008 61,875 

Year ending March 31, 2009 54,630 

Year ending March 31, 2010 41,670 

The Income-tax officer is not satisfied as to the accuracy of the incomes returned.  You are appointed as a 

consultant to assist in establishing correctness of the incomes returned and for that purpose you are 

given the following information: 

 

a) Business liabilities and assets at March 31, 2004 were: 
b) Creditors: ₹  32,940, Furniture & Fittings: ₹  22,500, Stock : ₹  24,390 (at selling pricewhich is 

25% above cost), Debtors: ₹  11,025, Cash at Bank and in hand ₹  15,615. 

c) Lokesh owned his brother ₹  18,000 on March 31, 2004.  On February 15, 2007 he repaid this amount 

and on April 1, 2009, he lent his brother ₹  13,500. 

d) Lokesh owns a house which he purchased in 1999 for ₹ 90,000 and a car which he purchased in 

October, 2005 for ₹  33,750. In January, 2009, he bought debentures in X Ltd. having face value of ₹  

40,000 for ₹  33,750. 

e) In May, 2009 a sum of ₹  13,500 was stolen from his house. 

f) Lokesh estimates that his living expenses have been 2004-05 - ₹  13,500; 2005-06 -₹  18,000; 

2006-07 - ₹  27,000; 2007-08, 2008-09 and 2009-10 - ₹  31,500 p.a. exclusive of the amount stolen. 

g) On March 31, 2010 business liabilities and assets were: Creditors ₹  37,800, Furniture, Fixtures and 

Fittings ₹  40,500, Stock ₹  54,330 (at selling price with a gross profit of 25%), Debtors ₹  26,640, 

Cash-in-Hand and at Bank ₹  29,025. 

 
From the information submitted, prepare statements showing whether or not the incomes declared by 

Lokesh are correct. 

 

Answer 

 

Statement of Affairs of ‘Lokesh’ as on March 31, 2004 

 

Liabilities 

 
₹ 
  

Assets 

 
₹ 
 

 
 

Creditors 32,940 Furniture, Fixtures & Fittings 22,500 

Loan from brother 18,000  Stock (24,390 x 100/125) 19,512 

Capital (Bal. fig.) 1,07,712  Debtors 11,025 

    Cash-in-Hand and at Bank 15,615 

    Building (House) 90,000 

       

 1,58,652  1,58,652 
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Statement of Affairs of ‘Lokesh’ as on March 31, 2010 
 

Liabilities ₹ Assets ₹ 

Creditors 

 

37,800 

 

Furniture, Fixtures & Fittings 

 

40,500 

 

Capital (Bal. fig.) 2,70,112 Stock (54,330 x 75%) 40,747 

  Debtors 26,640 

  Cash-in-Hand and at Bank 29,025 

  Loan to Brother 13,500 

  Building (House) 90,000 

  Car 33,750 

  Debentures in ‘X Ltd.’ 33,750 

 3,07,912  3,07,912 

 

Statement of Profit: 

Particulars ₹ ₹ ₹ 

Capital as on March 31, 2010   2,70,112 

Add: Drawings    

2004-05 13,500   

2005-06 18,000   

2006-07 27,000   

2007-08 31,500   

2008-09 31,500   

2009-10 31,500  1,53,000 

   4,23,112 

Add: Amount stolen in May, 2009   13,500 

   4,36,612 

Less: Opening Capital as on March 31, 2004   (1,07,712) 

   3,28,900 

Less: Profit as shown by I.T.O.    

For the year ending March 31, 2005  33,075  

For the year ending March 31, 2006  33,300  

For the year ending March 31, 2007  35,415  

For the year ending march 31, 2008  61,875  

For the year ending March 31, 2009  54,630  

For the year ending March 31, 2010 

 

41,670 (2,59,965) 

Understatement of Income   68,935 

 

Note: In the absence of the information regarding depreciation in the question, no depreciation has been 

provided on Building (house) and Car. The candidates may assume any appropriate rate of depreciation and can 

provide depreciation. 
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TeachMe Academy (88887 88889) Cash Flow Statement  

 

CMA, CS Rohan Nimbalkar  

 

 
 

Question 1                                                                                                                                                                             

From the following Balance Sheet and information, prepare Cash Flow Statement of Ryan Ltd. for the year ended 

31st March, 2015:  

Balance Sheet 

 

Liabilities 31st March, 2015 (₹) 31st March, 2014 (₹) 

 

Equity Share Capital 

10% Redeemable Preference Share Capital 

Capital Redemption Reserve 

Capital Reserve 

General Reserve 

Profit and Loss Account 

9% Debentures 

Trade payables 
 

Liabilities for Expenses 

Provision for Taxation 

Dividend payable 

6,00,000 

- 

1,00,000 

1,00,000 

1,00,000 

70,000 

2,00,000 

1,15,000 
 

30,000 

95,000 

90,000 

15,00,000 

5,00,000 

2,00,000 

- 

- 

2,50,000 

50,000 

- 

1,10,000 
 

20,000 

60,000 

60,000 

12,50,000 

 

 

Assets 

 

31st March, 2015 (₹) 31st March, 2014 (₹) 

Land and Building 

Plant and Machinery 

Investments 

Inventory 
 

Trade receivables 

Cash and Bank 

Voluntary Separation Payments 

1,50,000 

7,65,000 

50,000 

95,000 
 

2,50,000 

65,000 

1,25,000 

15,00,000 

2,00,000 

5,00,000 

80,000 

90,000 
 

2,25,000 

90,000 

65,000 

12,50,000 

Additional Information: 

1. A piece of land has been sold out for ₹ 1, 50,000 (Cost - ₹ 1, 20,000) and the balance land was revalued.  
Capital Reserve consisted of profit on sale and profit on revaluation. 

2. On 1st April, 2014 a plant was sold for ₹ 90,000 (Original Cost - ₹ 70,000 and W.D.V. -₹ 50,000) and 
Debentures worth ₹ 1 lakh was issued at par as part consideration for plant of ₹ 4.5 lakhs acquired. 

3. Part of the investments (Cost - ₹ 50,000) was sold for ₹ 70,000. 

4. Pre-acquisition dividend received ₹ 5,000 was adjusted against cost of investment. 

5. Directors have declared 15% dividend for the current year. 

6. Voluntary separation cost of ₹ 50,000 was adjusted against General Reserve. 

7. Income-tax liability for the current year was estimated at ₹ 1,35,000. 

8. Depreciation @ 15% has been written off from Plant account but no depreciation has been charged on 

Land and Building. 

 

Cash Flow Statement - (AS-3) 
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Answer  

Cash Flow Statement of Ryan Limited For the year ended 31st March, 2015 

 

Cash flow from operating activities ₹ ₹ 

Net Profit before taxation 2,45,000  

Adjustment for   

Depreciation 1,35,000  

Profit on sale of plant (40,000)  

Profit on sale of investments (20,000)  

Interest on debentures    18,000  

Operating profit before working capital changes 3,38,000  

Increase in inventory (5,000)  

Increase in trade receivables (25,000)  

Increase in Trade payables 5,000  

Increase in accrued liabilities    10,000  

Cash generated from operations 3,23,000  

Income taxes paid (1,00,000)  

 2,23,000  

Voluntary separation payments (1,10,000)  

Net cash generated from operating activities  1,13,000 

Cash flow from investing activities   

Proceeds from sale of land 1,50,000  

Proceeds from sale of plant 90,000  

Proceeds from sale of investments 70,000  

Purchase of plant (3,50,000)  

Purchase of investments (25,000)  

Pre-acquisition dividend received   5,000  

Net cash used in investing activities  (60,000) 

Cash flow from financing activities   

Proceeds from issue of equity shares 1,00,000  

Proceeds from issue of debentures 1,00,000  

Redemption of preference shares (2,00,000)  

Dividends paid (60,000)  

Interest paid on debentures (18,000)  

Net cash used in financing activities  (78,000) 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (25,000) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year    90,000 

Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year    65,000 
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Working Notes: 

1. 

 ₹ 

Net profit before taxation  

Retained profit 70,000 

Less: Balance as on 31.3.2014 (50,000) 

 20,000 

Provision for taxation 1,35,000 

Dividend payable    90,000 

 2,45,000 

2. Land and Building Account 

 
 

 ₹  ₹ 

To Balance b/d 

To Capital reserve (Profit on sale) 

To Capital reserve (Revaluation profit) 

2,00,000 

30,000 

   70,000  

 

By Cash (Sale)  

By Balance c/d 

1,50,000 

1,50,000 

 

 

 

 3,00,000  3,00,000 

3. Plant and Machinery Account 
 

 ₹  ₹

   To     Balance b/d 5,00,000    By Cash (Sale) 90,000

To Profit and loss account 40,000 By Depreciation 1,35,000

To Debentures 1,00,000 By Balance c/d 7,65,000

To Bank 3,50,000   

  9,90,000   9,90,000

4. Investments Account 
 

 ₹  ₹

To Balance b/d 80,000 By Cash (Sale) 70,000 

To Profit and loss account 20,000 By Dividend  

To Bank (Balancing figure) 25,000  (Pre-acquisition) 5,000 

     By Balance c/d    50,000 

  1,25,000   1,25,000 

5. Capital Reserve Account 
 

 ₹  ₹

To Balance c/d 1,00,000 By 

By 

Profit on sale of land 

Profit on revaluation 

of land 

30,000 

        70,000 

  1,00,000   1,00,000 
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6. General Reserve Account 
 

 ₹  ₹ 

To Voluntary separation cost 50,000 By Balance b/d 2,50,000 

To Capital redemption reserve 1,00,000   

To Balance c/d 1,00,000   

     

  2,50,000   2,50,000 

7. Dividend payable Account 
 

 ₹  ₹ 

To Bank (Balancing figure) 60,000 By Balance b/d 60,000 

To Balance c/d 90,000 By Profit and loss account    90,000 

  1,50,000   1,50,000 

8. Provision for Taxation Account 
 

 ₹  ₹ 

  To  Bank (Balancing figure) 1,00,000    By Balance b/d 60,000 

To Balance c/d    95,000    By Profit and loss 

account 

1,35,000 

  1,95,000   1,95,000 

2. Voluntary Separation Payments Account 
 

 ₹  ₹ 

To Balance b/d 65,000 By General reserve 50,000 

To Bank (Balancing figure) 1,10,000 By Balance c/d 1,25,000 

  1,75,000   1,75,000 

 

Note: Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using ‘indirect method’. 

 

 

Question 2                                                                                                                                         

From the following information, prepare a Cash Flow Statement as per AS 3 for Banjara Ltd., using direct 

method: 

Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2010 

  

Assets: 2010 (₹ ‘000) 2009 (₹ ‘000) 

Cash on hand and balances with bank 200 25 

Marketable securities (having one month maturity) 670 135 

Sundry debtors 1,700 1,200 

Interest receivable 100 - 

Inventories 900 1,950 

Investments 2,500 2,500 

Fixed assets at cost 2,180 1,910 

Accumulated depreciation (1,450) (1,060) 

Fixed assets (net) 730 850 

Total assets 6,800 6,660 
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Liabilities:   

Sundry creditors 150 1,890 

Interest payable 230 100 

Income tax payable 400 1,000 

Long term debt 1,110 1,040 

Total liabilities 1,890 4,030 

Shareholder’ s fund:   

Share capital 1,500 1,250 

Reserves 3,410 1,380 

 4,910 2,630 

Total liabilities and shareholder’s ₹  fund 6,800 6,660 

 

Statement of Profit or Loss for the year ended 31-3-10 

 

Particulars  ₹ (000) 

 

Sales 30,650 

Cost of sales (26,000) 

Gross profit 4,650 

Depreciation (450) 

Administrative and selling expenses (910) 

Interest expenses (400) 

Interest income 300 

Dividend income 200 

Net profit before taxation and extraordinary items 3,390 

Extraordinary items:  

Insurance proceeds from earthquake disaster settlement 140 

Net profit after extraordinary items 3,530 

Income tax (300) 

 3,230 

 

Additional information:  

1. An amount of ₹  250 was raised from the issue of share capital and a further ₹  250 was raised from long-
term borrowings. 

2. Interest expense was ₹  400 of which ₹  170 was paid during the period ₹  100 relating to interest 
expense of the prior period was also paid during the period. 

3. Dividends paid were ₹  1,200. 
4. Tax deducted at source on dividends received (including in the tax expense of ₹  300 for the year) 

amounted to ₹  40. 
5. During the period the enterprise acquired fixed assets for ₹  350. The payment was made in cash. 
6. Plant with original cost of ₹ 80 and accumulated depreciation of ₹  60 was sold for ₹ 20. 
7. Sundry debtors and Sundry creditors include amounts relating to credit sales and credit purchase 

only.  
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Answer 

Cash Flow Statement (direct method) 

 

   Particulars  ₹ ₹ 

Cash flows from Operating Activities 

Cash receipts from customers (W.N.2) 

Cash paid to suppliers, employees and for expenses (W.N.3) 

Cash generated from operations 

Income tax paid (W.N.4) 

 

Cash flow before extraordinary item: 

proceeds from earthquake disaster settlement 

Net cash from operating activities 

Cash flows from Investing Activities 

Purchase of fixed assets 

Proceeds from sale of equipment 

Interest received (300 - 100) 

Dividends received (200 - 40) 

Net cash from investing activities 

Cash flows from Financing Activities 

Proceeds from issuance of share capital 

Proceeds from long term borrowings 

Repayment of long term borrowings (W.N.5) 

Interest paid (W.N.6) 

Dividends paid 

Net cash used in financial activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period (W.N.1) 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period (W.N.1) 

 

30,150 

(27,600) 

2,550 

(860) 

1,690 

 

140 

 

 

(350) 

20 

200 

160 

 

 

250 

250 

(180) 

(270) 

(1,200) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1,830 

 

 

 

 

 

30 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(1,150) 

710 

160 

870 

 

Working Notes: 
(1)   Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and balance with banks and investments in money market 

instruments for short period. 

 

  ₹’000 

 2010 2009 

Cash in hand and balance with bank 

Short-term investments 

Cash and cash equivalents 

200 

670 

870 

25 

135 

160 

 
(2) Cash receipts from customers 

 

 ₹’000 

Total sales 30,650 

Add: Sundry debtors at the beginning of the year 1,200 

 31,850 

Less: Sundry debtors at the end of the year (1,700) 

Cash sales 30,150 
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(3) Cash paid to suppliers, employees and for expenses 

 
   ₹’000 

Cost of sales  26,000 

Administrative and selling expenses  910 

  26,910 

Add: Sundry creditors at the beginning of the year 1,890  

Inventories at the end of year 900 2,790 

  29,700 

Less: Sundry creditors at the end of year (150)  

Inventories at the beginning of the year (1,950) (2,100) 

  27,600 

 

(4)  Income tax paid (including TDS from dividends received) 

 
 ₹’000 

Income tax expense for the year 300 

(including tax deducted at source from dividends received)  

Add: Income tax liability at the beginning of the year 1,000 

 1,300 

Less: Income tax liability at the end of the year (400) 

 900 

 

Out of ₹900 thousands, tax deducted at source on dividends received (amounting to ₹40 

thousands) is included in cash flows from investing activities and the balance of ₹860 

thousands is included in cash flows from operating activities. 

 

 
(5)   Repayment of long term borrowings during the year  

 
 ₹’000 

Long term debts at the beginning of the year 1,040 

Add: Long term borrowings made during the year 250 

 1,290 

Less: Long term borrowings at the end of the year (1,110) 

 180 

 

(6)   Interest paid during the year  

 
 ₹ ’000 

Interest expense for the year 400 

Add: Interest payable at the beginning of the year 100 

 500 

Less: Interest payable at the end of the year (230) 

 270 
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By CMA, CS Rohan Nimbalkar    

 

 

Question No. 1  

 

The partners of Shri Enterprises decided to convert the partnership firm into a Private Limited Company 

Shreya (P) Ltd. with effect from 1st January, 2018. However, company could be incorporated only on 1st 

June, 2018. The business was continued on behalf of the company and the consideration of ₹ 6,00,000 

was settled on that day  along  with interest @ 12% per  annum.  The  company  availed loan  of  ₹ 

9,00,000 @  10%  per  annum  on 1st June, 2018 to pay purchase consideration and for working capital. 

The company closed its accounts for the first time on 31st March, 2019 and presents you the following 

summarized profit and loss account: 

 

 ₹ ₹ 

Sales  19,80,000 

Cost of goods sold 11,88,000  

Discount to dealers 46,200  

Directors’ remuneration 60,000  

Salaries 90,000  

Rent 1,35,000  

Interest 1,05,000  

Depreciation 30,000  

Office expenses 1,05,000  

Sales promotion expenses 33,000  

Preliminary expenses (to be written off in first year itself)     15,000 18,07,200 

   

Profit  1,72,800 

 

Sales from June, 2018 to December, 2018 were 2½ times of the average sales, which further increased to 

3½ times in January to March quarter, 2019. The company recruited additional work force to expand the 

business. The salaries from July, 2018 doubled. The company also acquired additional showroom at 

monthly rent of ₹ 10,000 from July, 2018. 

 

You are required to prepare a Profit and Loss Account showing apportionment of cost and revenue 

between pre-incorporation and post-incorporation periods. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Profit/Loss prior to Incorporation 
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Answer  

Shreya (P) Limited 

Profit and Loss Accountfor 15 months ended 31st March, 2019 

 

 Pre. inc. 

(5 months) 

(₹) 

Post inc. 

(10 months) 

(₹) 

 Pre. inc. 

(5 months) 

(₹) 

Post inc. 

(10 months) 

(₹) 

To Cost of sales 1,80,000 10,08,000 By Sales 

(W.N.1) 

 

By Gross 

profit 

3,00,000 16,80,000 

To Gross profit 1,20,000 6,72,000     
 3,00,000 16,80,000 3,00,000 16,80,000 

To Discount to dealers 7,000 39,200 1,20,000 6,72,000 

To Directors’ remuneration - 60,000 By Loss 750  

To Salaries (W.N.2) 18,750 71,250    

To Rent (W.N.3) 15,000 1,20,000    

To Interest (W.N.4) 30,000 75,000    

To Depreciation 10,000 20,000    

To Office expenses 35,000 70,000    

To Preliminary expenses - 15,000    
To Sales promotion 5,000 28,000    

expenses      

To Net profit   -  1,73,550      
 1,20,750 6,72,000  1,20,750 6,72,000 
 

Working Notes: 

1. Calculation of sales ratio: 

Let the average sales per month in pre-incorporation period be x 

Average Sales (Pre-incorporation)  = x X 5 = 5x  

Sales (Post incorporation) from June to December, 2018 = 2½ x X 7  = 17.5x 

From January to March, 2019 = 3½ x X 3 =   10.5x  

Total Sales      28.0x 

Sales ratio of pre-incorporation & post incorporation is 5x : 28x 
 

2. Calculation of ratio for salaries 

Let the average salary be x 

Pre-incorporation salary = x X 5= 5x Post 

incorporation salary 

June, 2018 = x 

July 18 to March, 2019 =  x X 9 X 2  = 18x 

19x 

Ratio is 5 : 19 
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3. Calculation of Rent ₹ 

Total rent                                                         1,35,000 

Less: Additional rent for 9 months @  ₹ 10,000 p.m.   90,000 

Rent of old premises apportioned in  time ratio                 45,000 

Apportionment Pre Inc. Post Inc. 

Old premises rent 15,000 30,000 

                         Additional Rent                          90,000 

                                     15,000               1,20,000 

 

 

1. Calculation of interest 

Pre-incorporation period from January, 2018 to May, 2018 

 
 

     6,00,000 x 12 x 5        =  ₹ 30,000 

             

Post incorporation period from  June, 2018 to March, 2019 
 

 

     9,00,000 x 10 x 10        =  ₹ 75,000 

            100 x 12 

 
 

 

 

 

               = ₹ 1,05,000 
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Question No. 1                                                                                                                                             

 

The following is the summarized Balance Sheet of Bumbum Limited as at 31st March, 2019: 

 

 ₹ 

Sources of funds  

Authorized capital  

50,000 Equity shares of ₹ 10 each 5,00,000 

10,000 Preference shares of ₹ 100 each (8% redeemable) 10,00,000 

 15,00,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid up  

30,000 Equity shares of ₹ 10 each 3,00,000 

5,000, 8% Redeemable Preference shares of ₹ 100 each 5,00,000 

Reserves & Surplus  

Securities Premium 6,00,000 

General Reserve 6,50,000 

Profit & Loss A/c 40,000 

Trade payables  4,20,000 

 25,10,000 

Application of funds  

Property, Plant & Equipment (net) 7,80,000 

Investments (market value ₹ 5,80,000) 4,90,000 

Deferred Tax Assets 3,40,000 

Trade receivables 6,20,000 

Cash & Bank balance 2,80,000 

 25,10,000 

In Annual General Meeting held on 20
th  June, 2019 the company passed the following resolutions: 

(i) To split equity share of ₹ 10 each into 5 equity shares of ₹ 2 each from 1st July, 2019. 

(ii) To redeem 8% preference shares at a premium of 5%. 

(iii) To issue fully paid bonus shares in the ratio of one equity share for every 3 shares held on 

record date. 

On 10th July, 2019 investments were sold for ₹ 5,55,000 and preference shares were redeemed. 

The bonus issue was concluded by 12
th  September, 2019 

You are requested to journalize the above transactions including cash transactions and prepare Balance 

Sheet as at 30th September, 2019. All working notes should form part of your answer. 

 

 

 

Accounting for Bonus Issue & Redemption of Preference Shares  
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Bumbum Limited 

Journal Entries 

2019  Dr. (₹) Cr. (₹) 

July 1 Equity Share Capital A/c (₹ 10 each) Dr. 

To Equity share capital A/c (₹ 2 each) 

(Being equity share of ₹ 10 each splitted into 5 equity 

shares of ₹ 2 each) {1,50,000 X 2} 

3,00,000  

  3,00,000 

July 10 Cash & Bank balance A/c Dr. 

To Investment A/c To Profit & 

Loss A/c 

(Being investment sold out and profit on sale credited to 

Profit & Loss A/c) 

5,55,000  

  4,90,000 

  65,000 

July 10 8% Redeemable preference share capital A/c Dr. 

Premium on redemption of preference share A/c Dr. 

To Preference shareholders A/c 

(Being amount payable to preference share holders on 

redemption) 

5,00,000  

 25,000  

  5,25,000 

July 10 Preference shareholders A/c To 

Cash & bank A/c 

(Being amount paid to preference shareholders) 

Dr. 5,25,000  

  5,25,000 

July 10 General reserve A/c Dr. 

To Capital redemption reserve A/c 

(Being amount equal to nominal value of preference shares 

transferred to Capital Redemption Reserve A/c on its 

redemption as per the law) 

5,00,000  

  5,00,000 

Sept. 12 Capital Redemption Reserve A/c Dr. 

To Bonus to shareholders A/c 

(Being balance in capital redemption reserve capitalized to 

issue bonus shares) 

1,00,000  

  1,00,000 

Sept. 12 Bonus to shareholders A/c Dr. 

To Equity share capital A/c 

(Being 50,000 fully paid equity shares of ₹ 2 each issued as 

bonus in ratio of 1 share for every 3 shares held) 

1,00,000  

  1,00,000 

Sept. 30 Securities Premium A/c Dr. 

To Premium on redemption of preference shares A/c 

(Being premium on preference shares adjusted from 

securities premium account) 

25,000  

  25,000 
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Balance Sheet as at 30th September, 2019 

 

Particulars Notes ₹ 

 

1 

 

 

            

2 

 

 

a 

b 

 

a 

Equity and Liabilities 

Shareholders' funds 

Share capital 

 Reserves  and Surplus 

Current liabilities 

Trade Payables 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Total 

 

 
1 

 

 

4,00,000 

2 12,30,000 

 4,20,000 

 20,50,000 

 

1 

 

 

 

2 

 

 

a 

b 

Assets 

Non-current assets 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Deferred tax asset 

Current assets 

Trade receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Total 

  

 

7,80,000 

3,40,000 

 

6,20,000 

3,10,000 

20,50,000 

 

Notes to accounts 

 

1 Share Capital ₹ ₹ 

 Authorized share capital 

2,50,000 Equity shares of ₹ 2 each 

10,000 8% Preference shares of ₹100 each 

 

5,00,000 

10,00,000 

 

 

15,00,000 

 Issued, subscribed and  paid  up  

 2,00,000 Equity shares of ₹ 2 each 

 4,00,000 

2 Reserves and Surplus 

Securities  Premium A/c 

Balance as per balance sheet 

Less: Adjustment for premium on preference Shares 

Balance 

Capital Redemption Reserve (5,00,000 -1,00,000) 

General Reserve (6,50,000 – 5,00,000) Profit & Loss A/c 

Add: Profit on sale of investment 

                                                                                                                             

Total 

 

 

6,00,000 

(25,000) 

 

 

                           

40,000 

65,000 

 

 

 

                        

5,75,000 

4,00,000 

1,50,000 

 

1,05,000 

12,30,000 
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Working Notes: 

 

 ₹ 

1. Redemption of preference share:  

5,000 Preference shares of ₹ 100 each 5,00,000 

Premium on redemption @ 5%   25,000 

Amount Payable 5,25,000 

2. Issue of Bonus Shares  

Existing equity shares after split (30,000 x 5) 1,50,000 shares 

Bonus shares (1 share for every 3 shares held) to be issued 50,000 shares 

3. Cash and Bank Balance  

Balance as per balance sheet 2,80,000 

Add: Realization on sale of investment 5,55,000 

 8,35,000 

Less: Paid to preference share holders (5,25,000) 

Balance 3,10,000 

 

Question No.  2                                                                                                                      

Following is the extract of the Balance Sheet of Xeta Ltd. as at 31st March, 2017 

 

 ₹ 

Authorised capital:  

50,000 12% Preference shares of ₹ 10 each 5,00,000 

4,00,000 Equity shares of ₹ 10 each 40,00,000 

 45,00,000 

Issued and Subscribed capital:  

24,000 12% Preference shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid 2,40,000 

2,70,000 Equity shares of ₹ 10 each, ₹ 8 paid up 21,60,000 

Reserves and surplus:  

General Reserve 3,60,000 

Securities premium 1,00,000 

Profit and Loss Account 6,00,000 

On 1st April, 2017, the Company has made final call @ ₹ 2 each on 2,70,000 equity shares. The call 

money was received by 20th April, 2017. Thereafter, the company decided to capitalize its reserves 

by way of bonus at the rate of one share for every four shares held. 

Show necessary journal entries in the books of the company and prepare the extract of the balance 

sheet as on 30th April, 2017 after bonus issue. 
 

 

 

84



www.teachme.store            (8888788889)  Bonus Issue & Redemption of Preference Shares  

 

By CMA, CS Rohan Nimbalkar    

 

Answer  

Journal Entries in the books of Xeta Ltd. 
 

  ₹ ₹ 

1-4-2017 Equity share final call A/c 

To Equity share capital A/c 

(For final calls of ₹ 2 per share on 2,70,000 

equity shares due as per Board’s Resolution 

dated….) 

Dr. 5,40,000  

   5,40,000 

20-4-2017 Bank A/c 

To Equity share final call A/c 

(For final call money on 2,70,000 equity 

shares received) 

Dr. 5,40,000  

   5,40,000 

 Securities Premium A/c 

General Reserve A/c Profit 

and Loss A/c 

To Bonus to shareholders A/c 

(For making provision for bonus issue of one 

share for every four shares held) 

 

 

Dr. 

Dr. 

Dr. 

1,00,000 

3,60,000 

2,15,000 

 

   6,75,000 

 Bonus to shareholders A/c 

To Equity share capital A/c  

(For issue of bonus shares) 

Dr. 6,75,000  

   6,75,000 

 

Extract of Balance Sheet as at 30th April, 2017 (after bonus issue) 

 

 ₹ 

Authorised Capital  

50,000 12% Preference shares of ₹10 each 5,00,000 

4,00,000 Equity shares of ₹10 each 40,00,000 

Issued and subscribed capital  

24,000 12% Preference shares of ₹ 10 each, fully paid 2,40,000 

3,37,500 Equity shares of ₹10 each, fully paid 33,75,000 

(Out of above, 67,500 equity shares @ ₹10 each were issued by way of bonus)  

Reserves and surplus  

Profit and Loss Account 3,85,000 
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Question No.  3                                                                                                                     

 

Following items appear in the Trial Balance of Hello Ltd. as on 31st March, 2017: 

 

Particulars Amount 

9,000 Equity Shares of ₹100 each 9,00,000 

Securities Premium 80,000 

Capital Redemption Reserve 1,40,000 

General Reserve 2,10,000 

Profit and Loss Account (Cr. Balance) 90,000 

 

The company decided to issue to equity shareholders bonus shares at the rate of 1 share for every 3 
shares held. Company decided that there should be the minimum reduction in free reserves. Pass 
necessary Journal Entries in the books Hello Ltd. 

 

Answer  

 

Capital Redemption Reserve A/c Dr. 1,40,000 

Securities Premium A/c Dr.   80,000 

General Reserve A/c Dr.   80,000 

To Bonus to Shareholders 3,00,000 

 (Being issue of bonus shares by utilization of various 

Reserves, as per resolution dated …….) 
 

 

Bonus to Shareholders A/c Dr. 3,00,000 

To Equity Share Capital 3,00,000 

         (Being capitalization of Profit) 
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Question No. 1                                   

 

The following extract of Balance Sheet of X Ltd. (a non-investment company) was obtained: 

Balance Sheet (Extract) as on 31st March, 2019 

 

Liabilities ₹ 

Authorised capital:  

15,000, 14% preference shares of ₹ 100 15,00,000 

1,50,000 Equity shares of ₹ 100 each 1,50,00,000 

 1,65,00,000 

Issued and subscribed capital:  

15,000, 14% preference shares of ₹ 100 each fully paid 15,00,000 

1,20,000 Equity shares of ₹ 100 each, ₹ 80 paid-up 96,00,000 

Capital reserves (₹ 1,50,000 is revaluation reserve) 1,95,000 

Securities premium 50,000 

15% Debentures 65,00,000 

Investment in shares, debentures, etc. 75,00,000 

Profit and Loss account (debit balance) 15,25,000 

 

You are required to compute Effective Capital as per the provisions  of Schedule V  to the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

 

Answer  

Computation of Effective Capital 

 

 ₹ 

Paid-up share capital-   

15,000, 14% Preference shares  15,00,000 

1,20,000 Equity shares  96,00,000 

Capital reserves (excluding revaluation reserve)  45,000 

Securities premium  50,000 

15% Debentures    65,00,000 

 (A) 1,76,95,000 

Investments  75,00,000 

Profit and Loss account (Dr. balance)  15,25,000 

 (B) 90,25,000 

Effective capital (A–B) 86,70,000 

 

 

Financial Statements of Companies 
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Question No. 2                                                                                                                                                   

 

The following extract of Balance Sheet of Gaurav Ltd. was obtained: 

Balance Sheet (Extract) as on 31st March, 2018 

 

Liabilities ₹ 

Authorised capital:  

90,000, 14% preference shares of ₹ 100 90,00,000 

9,00,000 Equity shares of ₹100 each  9,00,00,000 

 9,90,00,000 

Issued and subscribed capital:  

67,500, 14% preference shares of ₹ 100 each fully paid 67,50,000 

5,40,000 Equity shares of ₹ 100 each, ₹ 80 paid-up 4,32,00,000 

Share suspense account 90,00,000 

Reserves and surplus  

Capital reserves (₹ 6,75,000 is revaluation reserve) 8,77,500 

Securities premium 2,25,000 

Secured loans:  

15% Debentures 2,92,50,000 

Unsecured loans:  

Public deposits 16,65,000 

Cash credit loan from SBI (short term) 5,92,500 

Current Liabilities:  

Trade Payables 15,52,500 

Assets:  

Investment in shares, debentures, etc. 3,37,50,000 

Profit and Loss account (Dr. balance) 68,62,500 

 

Share suspense account represents application money received on shares, the allotment of which is not 

yet made. You are required to compute effective capital as per the provisions of Schedule V. Would your 

answer differ if Gaurav Ltd.is an investment company? 
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Answer  

 

 Computation of effective capital:  

 Where Gaurav Ltd.is Where Gaurav Ltd.is 

 a non-investment 
company 

is an investment 
company 

Paid-up share capital —   

67,500, 14% Preference shares 67,50,000 67,50,000 

5,40,000 Equity shares 4,32,00,000 4,32,00,000 

Capital reserves 2,02,500 2,02,500 

Securities premium 2,25,000 2,25,000 

15% Debentures 2,92,50,000 2,92,50,000 

Public Deposits 16,65,000 16,65,000 

(A) 8,12,92,500 8,12,92,500 

Investments 3,37,50,000 - 

 Profit   and   Loss  account  (Dr. 
68,62,500

 
balance) 68,62,500 

 (B) 4,06,12,500 68,62,500 

 Effective capital (A–B) 4,06,80,000 7,44,30,000 

 

Question No. 3 

The following is the Draft Profit & Loss A/c of Harsha Ltd., the year ended 31st March, 20X1: 

 

  ₹   ₹ 
To Administrative, Selling 41,12,710 By Balance b/d 28,61,750 

 and distribution expenses     
To Directors fees 6,73,900 By Balance from Trading A/c 201,26,825 

To Interest on debentures 1,56,200 By Subsidies received from Govt. 13,69,625 

To Managerial remuneration 14,26,750    

To Depreciation on PPE 26,12,715    

To Provision for Taxation 62,12,500    

To General Reserve 20,00,000    

To Investment Revaluation 62,500    

 Reserve     

To Balance c/d 71,00,925    

  243,58,200   243,58,200 

Depreciation on PPE as per Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 was ₹ 28,76,725. You are required to 

calculate the maximum limits of the managerial remuneration as per Companies Act, 2013. 
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Answer  

Calculation of net profit u/s 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 

 ₹ ₹ 

Balance from Trading A/c 

Add: Subsidies received from Government 

 

Less:  Administrative, selling and distribution expenses  

               Director’s fees 

               Interest on debentures  

               Depreciation on PPE as per 

                                                                                                                             

Schedule II 

Profit u/s 198 

 201,26,825 

 13,69,625 

 214,96,450 

41,12,710  

6,73,900 
 

1,56,200  

 

28,76,725 

 

(78,19,535) 

 
136,76,915 

Maximum Managerial remuneration under Companies Act, 2013 = 11% of ₹ 136,76,915= ₹ 1504461. 

 

 

 

 

 

Question No. 4                                                                                                                                                                

Girish Ltd.  has the Authorised Capital of ₹ 10,00,000 consisting of 4,000 6% Preference shares of ₹ 100 

each and 60,000 equity Shares of ₹10 each. The following was the Trial Balance of the Company as on 

31st March , 2016 
 

Particulars Dr. Cr. 

Investment in Shares at cost 

Purchases 

Selling Expenses 

Inventory as at the beginning of the year 

Salaries and Wages 

Cash on Hand 

Interim Preference dividend for the half year to 30th 
September 

Bills Receivable 

1,00,000 

9,81,000 

1,58,200 

2,90,400 

1,04,000 

24,000 

12,000 
 

83,000 

 

 (Master Problem) 
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Interest on Bank overdraft 

Interest on Debentures upto 30th Sep (1st half year) 

Trade receivables and trade payables 

Freehold property at cost 

Furniture at cost less depreciation of ₹ 30,000 

6% Preference share capital 

Equity share capital fully paid up 

5% mortgage debentures secured on freehold properties 

Income tax paid in advance for the current year 

Dividends 

Profit and Loss A/c (opening balance) 

Sales (Net) 

Bank overdraft secured by hypothecation of stocks and 
receivables 

Technical knowhow fees at cost paid during the year 

Audit fees 

Total 

19,600 

7,500 

1,00,200 

7,00,000 

70,000 
 
 
 
 

20,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3,00,000 

12,000 

29,81,900 

 
 

1,75,700 
 
 

4,00,000 

4,00,000 

3,00,000 
 

8,500 

57,000 

13,40,700 

3,00,000 
 
 
 

29,81,900 

You are required to prepare the Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016 
and the Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2016 as per Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 after 
taking into account the following - 

1. Closing Stock was valued at ₹ 2,85,000. 

2. Purchases include ₹ 10,000 worth of goods and articles distributed among valued customers. 

3. Salaries and Wages include ₹ 4,000 being Wages incurred for installation of Electrical Fittings which 
were to be recorded under "Furniture". 

4. Bills Receivable include ₹ 3,000 being dishonoured bills. 50% of which had been considered 
irrecoverable. 

5. Bills Receivable of ₹ 4,000 maturing after 31st March were discounted. 

6. Depreciation on Furniture to be charged at 10% on Written Down Value. 

7. Investment in shares is to be treated as non-current investments. 

8. Interest on Debentures for the half year ending on 31st March was due on that date. 

9. Provide Provision for taxation ₹ 8,000. 

10.  Technical Knowhow Fees is to be written off over a period of 10 years. 

11.  Salaries and Wages include ₹ 20,000 being Director's Remuneration. 

12.  Trade receivables include ₹ 12,000 due for more than six months. 

 

Answer 

Statement of Profit and Loss of Girish Ltd. for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

 

 
Particulars Note This Year 

I Revenue from Operations  13,40,700 

II Other income (Divided income)  8,500 

III Total Revenue (I &+ II)  13,49,200 
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IV Expenses:   

 (a) Purchases of Inventory  

(9,81,000 – Advertisement Expenses 10,000) 
 9,71,000 

  (b)   Changes in Inventories of finished Goods / Work in progress & 

inventory (2,90,400 - 2,85,000) 
 5,400 

  (c)   Employee Benefits expense 9 80,000 

 (d)   Finance costs 10 34,600 

 (e)   Depreciation & Amortization Expenses [10% of (70,000 + 4,000)]  7,400 

 (f) Other Expenses 11 2,31,700 

 Total Expenses  13,30,100 

V Profit before exceptional, extraordinary items and tax (III-IV)  19,100 

VI Exceptional items  - 

VII Profit before extra ordinary items and tax (V-IV)  19,100 

VIII Extraordinary items  - 

IX Profit before tax (VII-VIII)  19,100 

X Tax expense:   

        Current Tax  8,000 

XI Profit/Loss for the period (after tax)  11,100 

 

Balance sheet of Garish Ltd. as on 31st March, 2016 

 

 Particulars as on 31st March Note ₹ 

(1) 
Shareholders’ funds: 

 
  

 (a)   Share capital 1 8,00,000 

 (b)   Reserves and surplus 2 44,100 

(2) Non-current liabilities:   

 Long term borrowings 3 3,00,000 

(3) Current liabilities:   

 (a)   Short term borrowings 4 3,00,000 

 (b)   Trade payables  1,75,700 

 (c)   Other current liabilities 5 19,500 

 Total  16,39,300 

 

II ASSETS   

(1) (a)   Non-current Assets   

 Fixed assets (i) Tangible assets 6 7,66,600 

                          (ii) Intangible assets 7 2,70,000 

 
(b)   Non-current investments (Shares at cost)  1,00,000 

 Current Assets:  
 

  (a)   Inventories  2,85,000 

 (b) Trade Receivables  8 1,81,700 

 (c)   Cash and Cash equivalents - Cash on hand  24,000 
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 (d)   Short term loans and advances -Income tax (paid 

20,000-Provision 8000) 

 12,000 

 Total  16,39,300 

. 

Note: There is a Contingent liability for Bills receivable discounted with Bank ₹ 4000. 

Notes to accounts 

  ₹ ₹ 

1. Share Capital    

 Authorized,   

 60,000 Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each.  6,00,000  

 4,000 6% Preference shares of ₹ 100 each 4,00,000  

 Issued, subscribed & called up   

 40,000 Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each 4,00,000  

 4,000 6% Redeemable Preference Shares of 100 each 4,00,000 8,00,000 

2.  Reserves and Surplus   

 Balance as on 1st April, 2015  57,000  

 Add: Surplus for current year 11,100 68,100 

 Less: Preference Dividend  24,000 

 Balance as on 31st March, 2016  44,100 

3.  Long Term Borrowings   

 5% Mortgage Debentures (Secured against Freehold Properties)  3,00,000 

4.  Short Term Borrowings   

 Secured Borrowings: Loans Repayable on Demand Overdraft from 

Banks (Secured by Hypothecation of Stocks & Receivables) 
 3,00,000 

5.  Other Current liabilities   

 Interest Accrued and due on Borrowings (5% Debentures) 7,500  

 Unpaid Preference Dividends 12,000 19,500 

6. Tangible Fixed assets 
  

 Furniture 
  

 Furniture at Cost Less depreciation ₹ 30,000 (as given in Trial Baln) 70,000 
 

 Add: Depreciation 30,000 
 

 Cost of Furniture 1,00,000 
 

 Add:  Installation charge of Electrical Fittings wrongly included 

under the heading Salaries and Wages 
4,000 

 

 Total Gross block of Furniture A/c 1,04,000 
 

 Accumulated Depreciation Account:  

Opening Balance-given in Trial Balance                                      30,000 

 
 

 Depreciation for the year:  
 

 On Opening WDV at 10% i.e. (10% x  70,000)                            7,000  
 

 On additional purchase during the year at 10% i.e. 

(10% x 4,000)                                                                                400 
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 Less: Accumulated Depreciation 37,400 66,600 

 Freehold property (at cost)  7,00,000 

   7,66,600 

7. Intangible Fixed Assets   

 Technical knowhow 3,00,000  

 Less: Written off 30,000 2,70,000 

8. Trade Receivables   

 Sundry Debtors (a) Debt outstanding due more than six months 12,000  

 (b) Other Debts (refer Working Note)  89,700  

 Bills Receivable (83,000 -3,000) 80,000 1,81,700 

9. Employee benefit expenses   

 Amount as per Trial Balance 1,04,000  

 Less: Wages incurred for installation of electrical fittings to be 
capitalised 

4,000  

 Less: Directors’ Remuneration shown separately  20,000  

 Balance amount  80,000 

10. Finance Costs 
  

 
Interest on bank overdraft 19,600  

 
Interest on debentures 15,000 34,600 

11. Other Expenses   

 Payment to the auditors 12,000  

 Director’s remuneration 20,000  

 Selling expenses 1,58,200  

 Technical knowhow written of (3,00,000/10) 30,000  

 Advertisement (Goods and Articles Distributed) 10,000  

 Bad Debts (3,000 x50%) 1,500 2,31,700 

 

 

Working Note 

Calculation of Sundry Debtors-Other Debts 

 

Sundry Debtors as given in Trial Balance 1,00,200 

Add Back: Bills Receivables Dishonoured 3,000 

 1,03,200 

Less: Bad Debts written off - 50% ₹ 3,000 (1,500) 

Adjusted Sundry Debtors 1,01,700 

Less: Debts due for more than 6 months (as per information given) (12,000) 

Total of other Debtors i.e. Debtors outstanding for less than 6 months 89,700 
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Mis P and Co., had four departments A,B,C and D. Each department being managed by manager whose 
commission was 10% of the respective departmental profit, subject to a minimum of ₹ 6,000 in each case. 
Interdepartmental transfers took place at a 'loaded' price as follows: 

From Department   A to Department B 10% above cost 

From Department   A to Department D 20% above cost 

From Department   C to Department D 20% above cost 

From Department   C to Department B 20% above cost 

For the year ending on  31st March, 2014 the firm had already prepared and closed the departmental Trading 
and Profit and Loss Account. Subsequently, it was discovered that the closing stocks of departments had 
included interdepartmentally transferred goods at loaded price instead of cost price. From the following 
information prepare a statement recomputing the departmental profit or loss: 
 

 Dept. A Dept. B Dept. C Dept D 

 ₹ ₹ ₹ ₹ 

Final Profit (Loss) (38,000) 50,400 72,000 1,08,000 

Inter departmental transfers included at loaded 
price  in  the departmental stock 
 

  

(₹ 22,000  
from and 
₹ 48,000 
from 
Dept. C 

  

(₹ 3,600 
from Dept. C 
and ₹ 1,200 
from Dept. 
A) 

 

 

Answer 

Statement showing the re-computation of Departmental Profit or Loss 

    

Particulars A B C D 

 
₹ ₹ ₹ ₹ 

A Final Profit/(Loss) (Computed earlier) (38,000) 50,400 72,000 1,08,000 

B Add: Departmental Manager's Commission @ 10%  of  Deptt.  
Profit  subject  to  a minimum of ͅ₹ 6,000 [Working Note (i)] 

6,000 6,000 8,000 12,000 

C Profit before Deptt. Manager's commission (A+B) 

 
(32,000) 56,400 80,000 1,20,000 

D. Less: Profit earned through transfer of goods at loaded price 
remaining in stock at transfer department (W.N. 2) 

 

(2,200)  (8,600)  

E. Correct Departmental Profit (before manager's Commission) 
(C-D) 

 

(34,200) 56,400 71,400 1,20,000 

F. Less: Manager's commission @ 10% of profit subject to a 
minimum of ₹ 6,000 

6,000 (6,000) (6,000) (7,140) 

G. Departmental Profit  after  Manager's commission (E-F) 
 

(40,200) 50,400 64,260 1,08,000 

 

Question No. 1                                                                                                                                                        

Departmental Accounts 
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Working Note: 

1. Manager's Commission: 
  

 Deptt. Profit/Loss Commission  

A (-) 38,000 6,000  

B 50,400 6,000 i.e. (50,400 x 1/9 = ₹ 5,600 less than ₹ 6,000) 

C 72,000 8,000 i.e. (72,000 x 1/9 = ₹ 8,000) 

D 1,08,000 12,000 i.e. (1,08,000 x 119 = ₹ 12,000) 

  
2. Unrealised Profit on stock transfer: 
 

Dept. A:   22,000 to Deptt. B @ 110%, Profit thereon 22,000 x 10/110 2,000 

 ₹ 1,200 to Deptt. D @ 120% Profit thereon 1,200 x 20/120 200 

  2,200 

Dept. C ₹ 48,000 to Deptt. B 120% Profit thereon 48,000 x 20/120 8,000 

 ₹ 3,600 to Deptt. D @ 120 % Profit thereon 3,600 x 20/120 600 

  8,600 
 

 

 

If Ltd. has three departments and submits the following information for the year ending on 
31st March, 2014: 

 
 L M N Total (₹) 

Purchases (units) 

Purchases (Amount) 

Sales (Units) 

Selling Price (₹per unit) 

Closing Stock (Units) 

12,000 
 

12,240 

40 

1,200 

24,000 
 

23,040 

45 

1,920 

28,800 
 

29,952 

50 

72 

 
12,00,000 

You are required to prepare departmental trading account of If Ltd., assuming that the rate of profit on 
sales is uniform in each case. 
 

Answer 

Departmental Trading Account for the year ended on 31st March, 2014 
 

Particulars L M N Particulars L M N 

 ₹ ₹ ₹  ₹ ₹ ₹ 
To Opening 

Stock 
To Purchases 

To Gross Profit 

23,040 

1,92,000 

2,93,760 
5,08,800 

17,280 

4,32,000 

6,22,080 
1,07,1360 

24,480 

5,76,000 

8,98,560 
14,99,040 

By Sales 

By Closing 
Stock 

4,89,600 

19,200 
 

5,08,800 

10,36,800 

34,560 
 

10,71,360 

14,97,600 

1,440 
 

14,99,040 

Question No. 2 
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Working Notes: 

(1) Profit Margin Ratio 
  

 ₹ 

Selling price of unit purchased:  

Department L (12,000 x 40) 4,80,000 

Department M  (24,000 x 45) 10,80,000 

Department N (28,800 x 50) 14,40,000 

Total Selling Price 30,00,000 

Less: Purchase (Cost) Value 12,00,000 

Gross Profit 18,00,000 

Profit Margin Ratio = (18,00,000/ 30,00,000) x 100 = 60%  

 
(2) Statement showing department-wise per unit Cost and Purchase Cost 

 
 L M N 

Selling Price (Per unit) (₹) 

Less: Profit Margin @ 60% (₹) 

Purchase price per unit (₹) 

Number of units purchased 

Purchases (cost per unit x Units 
purchased) 

40 

24 

16 

12,000 

1,92,00
0 

45 

27 

18 

24,00
0 

4,32,00

50 

30 

20 

28,80
0 

5,76,00
(3) Statement showing calculation of department-wise Opening Stock (in Units) 

 
 L M N 

Sales (Units) 

Add: Closing Stock (Units) 
 

Less: Purchases (units) 

Opening Stock (Units) 

12,24
0 

1,200 

13,440 

12,000 

1,440 

23,040 

1,920 

24,960 

24,000 

960 

29,95
2 

72 

30,02
4 

28,80
 

(4) Statement showing department-wise cost of Opening Stock and Closing Stock 
 

 L M N 

Cost of Opening Stock (₹) 

₹ 

Cost of Closing Stock 

₹ 

(1,440 x 16) 

23,040 

(1,200 x 16) 

19,200 

(960 x 18) 

17,280 

(1,920 x 18) 

34,560 

(1,224 x 20) 

24,480 

(72 x 20) 

1,440 

 
 
 

 
The following balances were extracted from the books of M/s Division.  You are required  to prepare 
Departmental Trading Account and Profit and Loss account for the year ended 31st December, 2016 after 
adjusting the unrealized department profits if any. 

Question No. 3                                                                                                                                   
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 Deptt. A ₹ Deptt. B ₹ 

Opening Stock 
Purchases 
Sales 

50,000 
6,50,000 
10,00,000 

40,000 
9,10,000 
15,00,000 

General expenses incurred for both the departments were ₹ 1,25,000 and you are also supplied  with  the  
following  information:  
(a)  Closing stock of  Department  A ₹ 1,00,000 including goods from Department B for ₹ 20,000 at cost of 
Department A.  
(b) Closing stock of Department B ₹ 2,00,000 including goods from Department A for ₹ 30,000 at cost to 
Department B.  
(c) Opening stock of Department A and Department B include goods of the value of ₹ 10,000 and ₹ 15,000 
taken from Department B and Department A respectively at cost to transferee departments.  
(d) The rate of gross profit is uniform from year to year. 
 

Answer 

                                          Departmental Trading and Loss Account of M/s Division 

                                                       For the year ended 31st December, 2016 
 

 Deptt. A Deptt. B  Deptt. A Deptt. B 

 ₹ ₹  ₹ ₹ 

To Opening stock 

To Purchases 
To Gross profit 
 

To General 
Expenses 

(in ratio of 
sales) 

To Profit ts/f to 
general 

profit and   loss 
account 

50,000 

6,50,000 
4,00,000 

11,00,000 
 
 
 

50,000 

3,50,000 

40,000 

9,10,000 
7,50,000 

17,00,000 
 
 
 

75,000 

6,75,000 

By Sales 

By Closing 
stock 

 

By Gross profit 

10,00,000 
 

1,00,000 

11,00,000 

4,00,000 

15,00,000 
 

2,00,000 

17,00,000 

7,50,000 

4,00,000 7,50,000 4,00,000 7,50,000 

                                                         General Profit and Loss Account 
 

 ₹  ₹ 

To Stock reserve required (additional: 

Stock in Deptt. A 

50% of (₹ 20,000 - ₹ 10,000) (W.N.1) 

Stock in Deptt. B 

40% of (₹ 30,000 - ₹ 15,000) (W.N.2) 

To Net Profit 

 
 

5,000 
 

6,000 

10,14,000 

10,25,000 

By Profit from: 

Deptt. A 

Deptt. B 

 

3,50,000 

6,75,000 
 
 
 
 

10,25,000 

Working Notes: 

1.  Stock of department A will be adjusted according to the rate applicable to department B = [(7,50,000 ÷ 
15,00,000) х 100] = 50% 

2.  Stock of department B will be adjusted according to the rate applicable to department A = [(4,00,000 ÷ 
10,00,000) х 100] = 40% 
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Question No. 1                                                                                                                                                      RTP May 2017 

Foreign Branch 

M/s Heera & Co. has head office at U.S.A. and branch in Patna(India). Patna branch is an integral foreign 
operation of Heera & Co. 

Patna branch furnishes you with its trial balance as on 31st March, 2016 and the additional information given 
thereafter: 

  

 Dr. Cr. 

 
(Rupees in thousands) 
 

Stock on 1st April, 2015   

Purchases and Sales 800 1,200 

Sundry Debtors & Creditors 400 300 

Bills of Exchange 120 240 

Wages & Salaries 560 - 

Rent, Rates & Taxes 360 - 

Sundry Charges 160 - 

Plant 240 - 

Bank Balance 420 - 

New York Office A/c - 1,620 

 3,360 3,360 

 

Information: 

(a)   Plant was acquired from a remittance of US $ 6,000 received from USA head office and 

paid to the suppliers. Depreciate Plant at 60% for the year. 

(b)   Unsold stock of Patna branch was worth ₹ 4,20,000 on 31st March, 2016. 

(c)   The rates of exchange may be taken as follows: 

- On 01.04.2015 @ ₹ 55 per US $ 

- On 31.03.2016 @ ₹ 60 per US $ 

- Average exchange rate for the year @ ₹58 per US $ 

- Conversion in $ shall be made up to two decimal accuracy. 
You are asked to prepare in US dollars the revenue statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016 and 

the balance sheet as on that date of Patna branch as would appear in the books of USA head office of Heera& Co. 

You are informed that Patna branch account showed a debit balance of US $ 29845.35 on 31.3.2016 in USA 

books and there were no items pending reconciliation 
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Answer 

M/s Heera & Co. 

Patna Branch Trial Balance in (US $)as on 31st March, 2016 
 

 Conversion 

rate per US $ 

(₹) 

Dr. 

US $ 

Cr. 

US $ 

Stock on 1.4.15 55 5,454.55 - 

Purchases and sales 

Sundry debtors and creditors 

Bills of exchange 

Wages and salaries 

Rent, rates and taxes 

Sundry charges 

Plant 

Bank balance 

USA office A/c 

58 

60 

60 

58 

58 

58 

- 

60 

- 

13,793.10 

6,666.67 

2,000.00 

9,655.17 

6,206.90 

2,758.62 

6,000.00 

7,000.00 

- 

20,689.66 

5,000.00 

4,000.00 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

29,845.35 

59,535.01 59,535.01 

Trading and Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

 
 

 US $  US $ 

To  Opening Stock 

To  Purchases 

To  Wages and salaries 
 
 
 

To  Gross Loss b/d 

To  Rent, rates and taxes 

To  Sundry charges 

To  Depreciation on Plant 

(US $ 6,000 × 0.6) 

5,454.55 

13,793.10 

9,655.17 

By Sales 

By  Closing stock 

(₹ 4,20,000/60) 

By Gross Loss c/d 
 

By Net Loss 

20,689.66 

7,000.00 
 

1,213.16 

28,902.82 28,902.82 

1,213.16 

6,206.90 

2,758.62 

3,600.00 

13,778.68 

13,778.68 13,778.68 

Balance Sheet of Patna Branch as on 31st March, 2016 
 

Liabilities  US $ Assets US $ US $ 

USA Office A/c 

Less: Net Loss 

Sundry creditors 

Bills payable 

29,845.35 

(13,778.68) 

 

16,066.67 

5,000.00 

4,000.00 

Plant 

Less: Depreciation 

Closing stock 

Sundry debtors 

 6,000.00 

(3,600.00) 

 

2,400.00 

7,000.00 

6,666.67 

   Bills receivable 

Bank balance 

 2,000.00 

7,000.00 

25,066.67 25,066.67 
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Question No. 2                                                                                                                                                     RTP Nov 14 

Using the Stock and Debtors system, find out the profit or loss made at the Kolkata Branch in 2014. 

 

 ₹ 
 

Stock (1st January) invoice price 24,000 

Branch Debtors (1st January) 12,400 

Goods sent to the Branch (invoice price) 70,000 

Goods returned by the Branch (invoice price) 2,000 

Sales:  

Credit 42,000 

Cash 40,000 

Goods returned by customers 1,200 

Cash received from debtors 39,600 

Discount allowed to them 600 

Cash sent for expenses at the Branch 12,200 

Shortage of goods at the Branch (invoice price) 800 

 

Goods are invoiced to the Branch at the selling price so as to show a profit of 30% on invoice price. 
 

Answer 

Branch Stock Account 
 

Particulars ₹ Particulars ₹ 

To Balance b/d 

To Goods sent to Branch A/c 

To   Branch   Debtors (Sales 
Returns) 

24,000 

70,000 

1,200 

By Cash A/c (Cash sales) 

By Branch Debtors (credit sales) 

By  Goods  sent  to  Branch  A/c 
(Returns) 

By Shortage of goods 

By Balance c/d (Bal. fig.) 

40,000 

42,000 

2,000 
 

800 

10,400 

95,200 95,200 

 

Branch Debtors Account  
Particulars ₹ Particulars ₹ 

To Balance b/d 
 

To Branch Stock (Credit sales) 

12,400 
 

42,000 

By   Branch   stock   A/c (Sales 
Returns) 

By Cash A/c 

By Discount A/c 

By Balance c/d (Bal. fig.) 

1,200 
 

39,600 

600 

13,000 

54,400 54,400 

Branch Expenses Account 

Particulars ₹ Particulars ₹ 

To Cash A/c 

To Discount A/c 

12,200 

600 

By Branch P&L A/c (Bal. fig.) 12,800 

12,800 12,800 
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Goods Sent to Branch Account 

Particulars ₹ Particulars ₹ 

To Branch Stock A/c (Returns) 

To Branch Adjustment A/c  (Loading) 
(70,000× 30%) 

To Trading A/c (Bal. fig.) 

2,000 

21,000 
 

47,600 

By Branch Stock A/c 

By Branch Adj. A/c (Loading) 
(2,000 × 30%) 

70,000 

600 

70,600 70,600 

Branch Adjustment Account 

Particulars ₹ Particulars ₹ 

To Shortage of goods (Loading) 
(800 × 30%) 

To Branch Stock Reserve A/c 
(10,400 × 30%) 

To P&L A/c (Bal. fig.) 

240 
 

3,120 
 

24,240 

By Branch Stock Reserve 

(24,000 × 30%) 

By   Goods   sent   to   Branch (Net 
loading) (21,000 - 600) 

7,200 
 

20,400 

27,600 27,600 

 
 

Branch Profit and Loss Account 

Particulars ₹ Particulars ₹ 

To Branch Expenses A/c 

To   Shortage   of   Goods 
(cost) (800 × 70%) 

To Net Profit 

12,800 

560 
 

10,880 

By Branch Adjustment A/c 24,240 

24,240 24,240 

 

 

Question No. 3                                                                                                                                                     RTP Nov 2013 

 

M/s X has a branch at Delhi and the goods are invoiced to branch at a profit of 20% on invoice price.  Head 
Office paid all the branch expenses from its bank account, except petty cash expenses which were met by 
the branch. Branch expenses directly paid by M/s X on behalf of Delhi branch amounted to ₹ 20,000. 
Following information is available of the transactions at Delhi branch for the year ended 31st December, 
2012: 

 
 As on 

1.1.2012 
As on 

31.12.2012 

 ₹ ₹ 

Stock, at invoice price 

Debtors 

Petty cash 

80,000 

24,000 

3,000 

1,00,000 

22,000 

5,000 
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Transactions during the year ended 31st December, 2012: ₹ 

Goods sent to branch, at invoice price 8,40,000 

Goods returned by branch to head office, at invoice price 30,000 

Cash sales 3,10,000 

Credit sales 3,60,000 

Cash sent for petty expenses 12,000 

Bad debts at Delhi branch 2,000 

Goods returned by debtors 2,000 

You are required to prepare Delhi Branch account (on cost basis) in the books of M/s X under Debtors 
System. 

 

Answer 

In the Books of M/s X 
Delhi Branch Account 

  
2012  ₹ ₹ 2012  ₹ ₹ 

Jan. 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dec. 31 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Jan. 1, 
2013 

To Balance b/d 
 

Stock 

Debtors 

Petty cash 
 
 

To Goods sent to 

Branch A/c 
To Bank: 

Sundry 
Expenses 

To Petty 
Expenses 

(W.N. 2) 

To Balance being 

Profit carried 

to (H.O.) P&L 
A/c 

 

To Balance b/d 

 
 

64,000 

24,000 

3,000 

 
 
 
 

91,000 
 
 
 

6,72,000 
 

20,000 
 
 
 

10,000 
 
 
 

6,000 

7,99,000 

1,07,000 

Dec. 
31 

By  Bank 
 

Cash Sales 

Cash from 

Sundry 
Debtors 
(W.N.1) 

By  Goods sent to 

Branch  A/c - 
Returns 

to H.O. 
 

By  Balance c/d 
 

Stock 

Debtors 

Petty Cash 

 
 

3,10,000 
 
 

3,58,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

80,000 

22,000 

5,000 

 
 
 
 
 

6,68,000 
 
 
 
 

24,000 
 
 
 
 
 

1,07,000 
 
 

7,99,000 
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Working Notes: 

1. Cash Collected from debtors 
 

 ₹ 

Debtors as on 1.1.12 24,000 

Add: Credit sales 3,60,000 

  

 3,84,000 

Less :Bad debts and sales returns (2,000 + 2,000) (4,000) 

Closing balance of debtors (22,000) 

Cash collected during the year 3,58,000 

 

2. Petty expenses 
 

 ₹ 

Petty cash as on 1.1.12 3,000 

Add: Cash received from H.O 12,000 

 15,000 

Less: Petty cash as on 31.12.12 (5,000) 

Expenses during the year 10,000 
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Right Issue Meaning 

Rights offering (issue) is an issue of rights to a 

company's existing shareholders that entitles 
them to buy additional shares directly from 
the company in proportion to their 
existing holdings, within a fixed time period. 
In a rights offering, the subscription price
which each share may be purchased is 
generally at a discount to the current
price. Rights are often transferable, allowing 
the holder to sell them on the open market

 

Conditions required to fulfill for issue of Right Shares

 

 

Exceptions to the rights of existing equity shareholders

Section 62 recognises four situations under which the further shares are to be issued 

by a company, but they need not be offered to the existing shareholders.

1. The company in General Meeting passes a special resolution to this effect; and

2. The price of such shares is determined by the valuation report of a 

valuer subject to such conditions as may be prescribed.

The provisions of section 62 are applicable to all type

companies. 

 

The offer shall be made by notice specifying the number of shares 
offered and limiting a time not being less than fifteen days and 
not exceeding thirty days from the date of the offer within which 
the offer, if not accepted, shall be deemed to have been declined. 

Unless the articles of the company otherwise provide, the offer 
aforesaid shall be deemed to include a right exercisable by the 
person concerned to renounce the  shares offered to him or any 
of them in favour of any other person; and the notice (referred to 
in above bullet point) shall contain a statement of this right.

After the expiry of the time specified in the notice aforesaid, or on 
receipt of earlier intimation from the person to whom such 
notice is given that he declines to accept the shares offered, the 
Board of Directors may dispose of them in such manner which is 
not disadvantageous to the shareholders and the company.

 

Rights offering (issue) is an issue of rights to a 

that entitles 
them to buy additional shares directly from 

in a fixed time period. 
subscription price at 

which each share may be purchased is 
to the current market 

. Rights are often transferable, allowing 
market. 

 

required to fulfill for issue of Right Shares

Exceptions to the rights of existing equity shareholders 

Section 62 recognises four situations under which the further shares are to be issued 

offered to the existing shareholders. 

passes a special resolution to this effect; and

The price of such shares is determined by the valuation report of a registered 

valuer subject to such conditions as may be prescribed. 

The provisions of section 62 are applicable to all types of companies except the Nidhi 

The offer shall be made by notice specifying the number of shares 
offered and limiting a time not being less than fifteen days and 
not exceeding thirty days from the date of the offer within which 
the offer, if not accepted, shall be deemed to have been declined. 

Unless the articles of the company otherwise provide, the offer 
aforesaid shall be deemed to include a right exercisable by the 
person concerned to renounce the  shares offered to him or any 
of them in favour of any other person; and the notice (referred to 
in above bullet point) shall contain a statement of this right.

After the expiry of the time specified in the notice aforesaid, or on 
receipt of earlier intimation from the person to whom such 
notice is given that he declines to accept the shares offered, the 
Board of Directors may dispose of them in such manner which is 
not disadvantageous to the shareholders and the company.

Right Issue Right Issue  

 

 

required to fulfill for issue of Right Shares 

 

Section 62 recognises four situations under which the further shares are to be issued 

passes a special resolution to this effect; and 

registered 

s of companies except the Nidhi 

The offer shall be made by notice specifying the number of shares 
offered and limiting a time not being less than fifteen days and 
not exceeding thirty days from the date of the offer within which 
the offer, if not accepted, shall be deemed to have been declined. 

Unless the articles of the company otherwise provide, the offer 
aforesaid shall be deemed to include a right exercisable by the 
person concerned to renounce the  shares offered to him or any 
of them in favour of any other person; and the notice (referred to 

After the expiry of the time specified in the notice aforesaid, or on 

notice is given that he declines to accept the shares offered, the 
Board of Directors may dispose of them in such manner which is 
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1. The financial position of a business is contained in the 

2. Further issue of 
liquid resources (Bank). 

3. The amount of equity is the product of further number of shares issued multiplied 
by issue price. 

4. The issue price may be higher than the face value (issue at a premium). 
Companies Act does not allow issue of shares at a discount, except issue of 
sweat equity shares under Section 53.

 

 

Calculation of Book Value of share 

Book value of a share = Net worth (as per books)/ Number of shares

 

 

•Right of renunciation refers to the right of the shareholder to surrender his 
right to buy the securities and transfer such right to any other person.

Meaning 

•Shareholders
do with the
particulars
pass on taking

Rights  Of  Shareholder 

•The renunciation
existing shareholders
value available
‘value of
shares in
price of the

Value of  Right  

•Value of right

•Ex-right
(Rights shares
right shares)

•The Ex-right

Value of right is determined by 

My Notes 
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Financial effects of a further issue

The financial position of a business is contained in the balance sheet.

Further issue of shares increase the amount of equity (net worth
liquid resources (Bank).  
The amount of equity is the product of further number of shares issued multiplied 

issue price.  
The issue price may be higher than the face value (issue at a premium). 
Companies Act does not allow issue of shares at a discount, except issue of 

ity shares under Section 53. 

Calculation of Book Value of share  

Book value of a share = Net worth (as per books)/ Number of shares

Right of Renunciation 
 

Right of renunciation refers to the right of the shareholder to surrender his 
right to buy the securities and transfer such right to any other person.

Meaning 

Shareholders that have received right shares have three
the rights. They can act on the rights and buy more

particulars of the rights issue; they can sell them in the
taking advantage of their rights (i.e., reject the right

Rights  Of  Shareholder 

renunciation of the right is valuable and can be
shareholders in well-functioning capital market

available to the existing shareholders due to right
right’. If a shareholder decides to renounce all
favour of his nominee, the value of right is

the re-nouncement of a right in favour of the nominee

Value of  Right  

right = Cum-right value of share - Ex-right value

value of the shares = [Cum-right value of the
shares X Issue Price)] / (Existing Number of

shares)

right value of the share is also known as the average

Value of right is determined by 

Right Issue  

 

of a further issue 

balance sheet.  

shares increase the amount of equity (net worth2) as well as the 

The amount of equity is the product of further number of shares issued multiplied 

The issue price may be higher than the face value (issue at a premium). 
Companies Act does not allow issue of shares at a discount, except issue of 

Book value of a share = Net worth (as per books)/ Number of shares 

 

Right of renunciation refers to the right of the shareholder to surrender his 
right to buy the securities and transfer such right to any other person.

three choices of what to
more shares as per the

the market; or they can
right offer).

be monetised by the
market. The monetised
right issue is known as

all or any of the right
restricted to the sale

nominee

value of share

the existing shares +
of shares + Number of

average price.
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ACCOUNTING FOR RIGH

The accounting treatment of rights share is the same as that of issue of ordinary 

shares and the following journal entry will be made:

 

S. No. Particulars  

1. Issue of Right Shares 

2. Issue of right shares at 

premium  

 

Advantages Of Right Issue

 

Disadvantages Of Right Issue

Right issue enables the existing 
shareholders to maintain their 

proportional holding in the 
company and retain their 

financial and governance rights.

Right issue is a natural hedge 
against the issue expenses 
normally incurred by the 

company in relation to public 

The chance of success of a 
right issue is better than 
that of a general public 
issue and is logistically 
much easier to handle

.  The right issue invariably leads to dilution 
in the market value of the share of the 

The attractive price of the right issue should 
be objectively assessed against its 

true worth to ensure that you get a 

 

ACCOUNTING FOR RIGHT ISSUE 

The accounting treatment of rights share is the same as that of issue of ordinary 

shares and the following journal entry will be made: 

Journal Entries 

Bank A/c………………………….. Dr. 

     To Equity shares capital A/c 

Bank A/c………………………….. Dr. 

    To Equity Share Capital A/c  

    To Securities Premium A/c 

Advantages Of Right Issue 

Disadvantages Of Right Issue 
 

 

Right issue enables the existing 
shareholders to maintain their 

proportional holding in the 
company and retain their 

financial and governance rights.

In well functioning capital 
markets, the right issue 

necessarily leads to 
dilution in the value of 

share. 

Right issue is a natural hedge 
against the issue expenses 
normally incurred by the 

company in relation to public 
issue.

The chance of success of a 
right issue is better than 
that of a general public 
issue and is logistically 

.  The right issue invariably leads to dilution 
in the market value of the share of the 

company.

The attractive price of the right issue should 
be objectively assessed against its 

true worth to ensure that you get a 
bargained deal.

Right Issue  

 

The accounting treatment of rights share is the same as that of issue of ordinary 
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Questions  
 

Question No. 1 

A company offers new shares of ₹ 100 each at 25% premium to existing shareholders on one for 
four bases. The cum-right market price of a share is ₹ 150. Calculate the value of a right. What 

should be the ex-right market price of a share? 

Solution: 

Ex-right value of the shares  = (Cum-right value of the existing shares + Rights shares Issue Price) / 
(Existing Number of shares + Rights Number of shares) 

 

= (₹ 150 X 4 Shares + ₹ 125 X 1 Share) / (4 + 1) Shares = ₹ 725 / 5 shares = ₹ 145 per share. 

Value of right  = Cum-right value of the share - Ex-right value of the share 

 

= ₹ 150 - ₹ 145 = ₹ 5 per share. 

Hence, any one desirous of having a confirmed allotment of one share from the  
company at ₹ 125 will have to pay ₹ 20 (4 shares X ₹ 5) to an existing shareholder  
holding 4 shares and willing to renounce his right of buying one share in favour of that  
person. 

 

Question  2 

A company has decided to increase its existing share capital by making rights issue to its existing 

shareholders. The company is offering one new share for every two shares held by the 
shareholder. The market value of the share is ₹ 240 and the company is offering one share of ₹ 

120 each. Calculate the value of a right. What should be the ex-right market price of a share? 

 

Solution 

Ex-right value of the shares = (Cum-right value of the existing shares + Rights shares x Issue 
Price)/(Existing Number of shares + Rights Number of shares) 

 

= (₹ 240 x 2 Shares + ₹ 120 x 1 Share) / (2 + 1) Shares = ₹ 600 / 3 shares = ₹ 200 per share. 

Value of right = Cum-right value of the share-Ex-right value of the share 

 

= ₹ 240 - ₹ 200 = ₹ 40 per share. 

Hence, any one desirous of having a confirmed allotment of one share from the  
company at ₹ 120 will have to pay ₹ 80 (2 shares x ₹ 40) to an existing shareholder  
holding 2 shares and willing to renounce his right of buying one share in favour of that  
person. 
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